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PUBLIC HEArING 

Town Hall 2/19/69 8:15 PM 

Present: Councilmen Bolander, Jamian^, Frohling, Supervisor Mundt 
Town Attorneys 
Town Clerk 

RE: PROPOSED AMENDMENT TO BUILDING ZONE ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN 
SEC. 5.221: ~ 

Supervisor Mundt called public hearing to order. Town 
Clerk read Notice of Public Herring. 

Town Attorney stated that on 1/15/69 letter was received 
from the Chairman of the Planning Board requesting this amendment 
because as ordinance was written, unroofed terrace could be con­
strued to be a "deck" which could extend out above ground right up 
to his neighbor's sideyard line. 

By amending to read w not to exceed one (1) foot 
above ground level ", we have eliminated thnt loophole in the 
ordinance to provide more privacy, fresh air and light. 

In response to question put by Councilman Bolander, Town 
Attorney stated that tree house would be considered recreation 
equipment. 

There were no further questions: 

IN FAVOR: No one appeared. 

OPPOSED: No one appeared. 

On resolution offered by Councilman Frohling, seconded by 
Councilman Bolander and unanimously adopted, public hearing was 
closed. 

Signed, 

A 

/ Anne E. O'Connor 
Town Clerk 
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PUBLIC HEARING 

Town Hall * 2/19/69 8:30 PM 

Present: Councilmen Bolander, Damiani, Frohling, Supervisor Mundt 
Town Attorneys 
Town Clerk 

Absent: Councilman Brenner. 

RE: PROPOSED AMENDMENT TO CHAPTER 34 OF THE CODE - SEWER DISTRICT 

REGULATIONS: 

Supervisor called public hearing to order. Town Clerk read 
notice of public hearing. 

Town Attorney explained proposed amendments as follows: 

Applications to be accompanied by bond in sum of not less 
that $10,000.; liability insurance also to be increased: $300,000. 

First sewer hookup that contractor does to be checked out 
by the Town Engineer to check as to their ability to properly install 
the sewer pipes. 

Also to increase the amount of surety bond from $1,000. to 
$5*000. to cover damage to public right of way and road openings. 

Mr. Felix Zito, Sewage Disposal Systems, Inc., 3301 Barnes 
Ave., Bronx, New York appeared before the Town Board opposing amendment; 
Town Attorney infomed him that this would apply only to new applicants 
for license. 

Re $20.00 fee; will cover cost of inspection. 

Re $10,000. - Ve compromised by going to $5,000., which is 
reasonable figure. 

Re $1,000. for damage; $5,000. was the Board's consensus 
to be a fair figure. 

Mr. Zito was instructed to address letter to the Town Clerk 
to be placed on the agenda for the next Town Board meeting for further 
discussion. 

On resolution oi&red fcy Councilman Bolander, seconded by 
Councilman Daminai and unanimously adopted, public hearing was closed. 

Signed, 

L'JQ095 

Anne E. O'Connor 
Town Clerk 
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PUBLIC IILA: ING 

Town Hall 2/19/69 8:45 PM 

Present: Councilmen Bclander, Damiani, Frohling, Supervisor Mundt 
Town Attorneys 
Town Clerk 

RE: PROPOSED REPEAL OF CHAPTER 25 OF THE CODE OF THE TOWN OF CLARKS-
TOWN ENTITLED "NUISANCES". 

Supervisor called public hearing to order. Town Clerk 
reed notice of public hearing. 

Town Attorney stated the following: 

Present ordinance provides that a lot owner must clear 
his lot and spells out penalty. New proposed Local Law authorizes 
the town, if owner does not do what he is supposed to do, to remove 
and charge the cost of removal to the property owner. Terms are 
incorporated in new Lot and Maintenance Law. 

Councilman Frohling informed Town Board that old ordinance 
stated that this condition must be cleaned up "as soon as possible", 
new ordinance provides that it cust be cleaned up within five (5) days 

Re junk cars, homeowner is notified; when notice is given, 
five days to remove. Will become effective in thirty days, if 
adopted. 

Mrs. Johnson suggested that addition " or offensive 
to the beholder" be included. 

Architectural Review Board is being charged with checking 
arbitrary decisions. 

On resolution offered by Councilman Frohling, seconded by 
Councilman Damiani and unanimously adopted, public hearing was closed. 

Signed, 

/ A n n e £• O'Connor 
/ Town Clerk 
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Town Hall P/19/69 9:00 PM 

Present: Councilman inlander, Dainieni, Frchling, Supervisor Kundt 
Town Attorneys 
Town Clerk 

Absent: Councilman Brenner 

RE: PROPOSED LOCAL LAV; RELATING TC LCT All PROPERTY Î AiKTENAKCE: 

Supervisor called public hearing to order. Town Clerk 
read notice of public hearing. 

Town Attorney stated the following: 

Legislative intent is to see that lots and property with­
in the town are properly maintained and free from vermin, nuisances, 
hazards and litter. 

No one shall be permitted to abandon or store any matter 
attractive to vermin on public property or privately owned property; 
such as abondoned autos, waste material, garbage, refuse, rubbish, 
old refrigerators, stoves et al. 

Failure to comply shall constitute violation which shall 
be punishable by fine not to exceed $100.00 or six months imprison­
ment. Each day that violation exists shall constitute a separate and 
distinct violation. 

By resolution, Town Board can cause any nuisance to be 
removed same to be charged against owner or occupant of the property. 
Proposed local law would become effective five (5) days after adoption. 

IN FAVOR: No one appeared. 

OPPOSED: No one appeared. 

On resolution offered by Councilman Daminai, seconded by 
Councilman ^olander and unanimously adopted, public hearing was 
closed. 

Anne E. O'Connor 
Town Clerk 
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PUBLIC HEARING 

Town Hall 2/19/69 9:30 PM 

Present: Councilmen Damia-i, Frohling, Bolander, Supervisor Mundt. 
Donald S. Tracy, Town Attorney. 
Anne E. CConnor, Town Clerk. 

Absent: Councilman Brenner. 

RE: PROPOSED INCREASE IN MAXIMUM AMOUNT TO BE EX1ENDED FOR 1MPR0VE-
KENT IN SEWER DISTRICT NO.19 _ 

Appearance: 

HARRY WAITZKAN, ESQ., 
Attorney for Sewer District No. 19» 
Court Square Building, 
20 South Main Street 
New City, New York 

MR. MUNDT: This public hearing OR the proposed increase 
in maximum amount to be expended for inr rovement in Sewer District 
No. 19 is now in session. 

(Notice of hearing was read by Mrs. Anne E. O'Connor.) 

MR. WAITZMAN: Mr. Mundt, appearing on behalf of the Dis­
trict, I would like to have Mrs. Anne E. O'Con.or sworn. 

MR. MUNDT: What is your name? 

MR* WAITZMAN: My name is Harry Waitzman, counsel for 
Sewer District No. 19-

ANNE E. O'CONNOR, Town Clerk, having first been duly sworn, was ex­
amined and testified as follows: 

EXAMINATION BY 

MR. WAITZMAN: 

Q Your name, ma'am? 

A Anne E. O'Connor. 

Q Your position? 

A Town Clerk, Town of Clarkstown. 

Q Did you cause to be published in the official news­
paper of the Town of Clarkstown a copy of this public hearing? 

A Yes. 

Q Did you further cause five copies of this public 
hearing to be posted in conspicuous places in the Town of Clarkstown? 

A Yes. 

MR. WAITZMAN: I would like to next call upon George 
Suttie to be sworn as a witness. 

GEORGE- 3UTTIE, being first duly sworn, was examined and testified as 
follows: 
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EXAKIIIATICK 3Y 

KR. WAITZKAN: 

Q Are you George *-»uttie, residing at 25 Linden Terr­
ace, New City, l̂ew York? 

A Yes. 

Q Are you the professional engineer that was re­
tained by Sewer District No. 19? 

A Yes. 

Q Mr. Suttie, were you involved in the preparation of 
the original plans and specifications and the est:;mates for the con­
struction of Sewer District No. 19 as of the time of its establish­
ment in 1964? 

A I had been, yes. 

Q Mr. Suttie, did you prepare copies of a report which 
v/as sent to the State Department of Auditing and Control on September 
18, 1%8, which is relative to a proposed increase that would be re­
quired for the construction of Sewer District No. 19. 

A I did, sir. 

Q Would you please explain to the ©embers of the Town 
Board and to the public the reasons for the increase in the maximum 
amount to be expended for Sewer District No. 19? 

A If I may refer to some papers that I have. 

If I may go into some of the history of the area, 
we are speaking about, and the estimate that we have come up with 
the amount we are asking you now to authorize. 

In 1964, a report was submitted which outlined the 
area, and which gave an estimated amount of the overall expenditure 
within the area. The estimate not only included the amount to con­
struct the pipelines, but also took into account the extra amount to 
take care of items such as engineering and other incidental things. 
The estimate that was presented was done, as I say, in 1964, the 
hearings were held then, and it was expected at that date that the 
construction would be done in 1964. However, it was held up and we 
didn't actually send a contract set cut to receive a bid on the work 
until July of 1968. At the time that went out we informed the Town 
that because of a time delay of four years in construction being 
done, that they should expect a certain hike, increase in the anti­
cipated amount to be spent. We said that was because of the four-
year delay, but then also other things had come out which would add 
to the overall expense, w^ich would be, one, that now the Town had 
taken on a policy when the sewer construction was done to come off 
and top all of the roads and avenues from edge to edge, which would 
add a certain amount. Plus the fact that we becsne ware that the 
interest you had to pay on the anticipation had to be calculated in 
as a whole as an added expense on the area, and the fact that you 
may earn interest on that, you couldn't deduct one from the other, 
although the interest earned could help to pay off some of the debt, 
but that you had to add in and calculate in the estimated amount of 
interest. We said that because all of these things you might expect 
a 58% increase. 

Let me }̂ust go back. I said then, and I asked whether or 
not you would want to apply to Albany then and ask for the right to 
increase to this estimated amount before we actually received a bid, 
and the answer then, and we all were in on this, was "Ho," because 
if we were in any way to indicate that we expected, or we thought 
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PU^IC Hi.;, I KG: 

RE: PRCiC^ED K.'CREr.oL I;; !\~.XJMT AJ cLIJT TC BE EXi-EKDED FCR IMPROVE­
MENT OF SEWER DI.JTivZCi HO. 19: continued 

GEvRGE SUiTIE: 

that we would have a 58% inc ease, that might well affect what a man 
might subir.it for bid. He will say, "Lis-en, they expect a bid as high 
as that, sure, I will be able to hike it up." 

So the answer v.as, "No, hold off and wait and see what 
they actually come in at." 

When they did come in, taking into account all the extras, 
it came out to be 53% higher t; an the authorized amount. 

We then decided that we felt that was high, and we thought 
by asking the contractors to resubmit we might have a possiblity of 
having the bid cut. However, we did not want to hold things up be­
cause there is a delay in applying u;; to Albany to get them to auth­
orize us to even hold a hearing, and we also din not know when we 
received the second set, whether or not they would be equal tc, or 
under, or cvm possibley higher than the ones we had received. So 
we applied to Albany for the right to hold a hearing, and we stipu­
lated the amount as 53%« 

After that, we did receive the second set and they came 
in about $200,000 below what the first amount was, and therefore 
gave an actual increase of 40%. 

Application, however, was already in to Alban.y at the 
higher amount. Albany sent back an ajproval for holding the hear­
ing on the higher amount, and it is that, that we are asking for here. 

I brought a chart along. I started to make it up so that 
I could easily show everyone what had happened, and I found out that 
that I am not sure what happened by looking at the chart, but if I 
can refer to it only as an indication now or what I am speahing about. 

The bar in the extreme left-hand edge represents the ori­
ginal estimate. 

MR. MUNDT: I think you can show it to the public. We 
are aware of it. 

A (cont'd.) The bar on the extreme left-hand side repre­
sents the original construction estimate, plus the allowance for the 
engineering extras. 

MR. BCLAHDER: What was that sum? 

THE WITNESS: The original amount was SI,4-50,000, sir. 

MR. BCLANDER: Thankyou. 

A (cont'd) The second bar in represents the îrst set of 
bids that we received on which we applied to Albany for the right to 
hold the hearing. 

The bar here represent the actual amount of the second 
set of bids that we have received, and now reflects whet we actually 
think and believe and can show what the amount will be. 

If you compare the actual increase in the cost of the con­
struction of the pipe lines as oringal outlined in the report that 
authorized the amount, there was actually only a 12% hike. We then 
had a 5% hike because of the fact we are expecting now and intending 
to go back over all avenues from edge to edge. A 10% amo nt has been 
added to that only to have an extra in there in case any unforeseen 
things happen, which then gives a total estimated construction in­
crease of 28%. 

We then pet into the area of the incidental amounts. 

subir.it
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!"L:.- (.r ^̂ ,;„:. j:..J.k:CL l.w. 1?: continued 

GEv.iwGL ̂ 'UTTIK: 

We ha-e a 4-73 »00C ar.ount that h'-s to te estimated as interest, and 
»50,000 that mu:;t be repaid to HUD for a loan that they mode to the 
area to set it up. 

We then have a 570, COO fee or aided ex. ense because wven 
this area was original];- conceived in 1964 there was thought then 
that the Town Engineer's office could handle the infection of the 
work. Because of the extent of the work that is '• eing done in the 
area, and the number of ren involved in it, it was now seen that 
outside helj or uther wen had to be put on the payroll to do this 
inspection, and there is therefore a »7G,000 increase of that. 

The whole t' ing that we anticipate now ccmes up to a 41% 
hike. This includes the interest that the Town will have to pay. 
However, they will, and have, we have the amounts here, have already 
gotten back in into est an amount higher than interest that was spent. 
So in effect at the end you can pay off part of the note with some of 
the interest earned. 

So that the net effect, I an Getting to the end now, is 
really a 33% h'ke. 

The chart at the end is a chart that we have picked out 
of the magazine, it is an engineering one that is sent to all the 
engineers all over the United Gtates that keeps an accounting of the 
costs as they go up month by month. Their estimate from the time of 
Karch 1964, to August, 1968, shows an average annual increase of 8%. 
Some years it was a little below, in 1964, it was ahout 6%, in the 
last year, in 1968, it was much higher. 3o that the average over 
the four-year span is 8% a year, or a 32% increase in construction. 

When you add on the engineering and other expenses, plus 
the interest rate, you get a 44% incre re* So that what you might 
have expected to pay including the interest, is a 44% increase, plus 
then going and adding $75*000 as against a 41% increase, whi*h in 
fact we have. 

To relate this now to what it means to an average home 
owner in the area, which is on here also, in tve report, in the March, 
1964 report, we estimated to the average home owner in the area, which 
at that time was a $5»0O0-assessed house, with 125 -foot in front, we 
estimated $89 a year as an average amount. The tax bill that just 
went out in 1969 to that same average house, gave approximately a 
$60-bill. 

If you were to take the 33% increase which we say you will 
spend now, and asking you to authorize at tl is hearing, if we were 
to take that straight increase annually to the home ^wner, it would 
increase the bill next year, if you at trorize it to be spent to $80 
a year to the average home owner. 

Q The point then would be -

A In effect you have now reduced by $9 a year the 
average cost to the home owner than we had originally expected. 

I am sure the next thing will be, as someone else mentioned 
earlier tonight, yes, this is so, we are paying 39 a yer less for a 
certain length of time, but we are paying so much more for ten years 
extra length. 

I won't go 'nto the fact that Albany authorized by an act 
of the State Legislature to allow municipalities to go the longer 
rate, it makes the interest rates lower, and all the other things 
involved, but I can show and state that if you take the increase over 
the total length of t^me paying an average of $7 a year below what 
was originally given in the report, it ccmes out to net $270 extra 
over the whole, to the average home owner in the area. 

MR. MUNDT: Forty-year period? 

THE WITNESS: If the home owner owns it for that time and 
and takes it to the end. 
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GEORGE 3UTTIE: 

MR. WAITZMAN: Ccn I ha-e this chr.rt marked as an exhibit? 

KR. I'!U;;DT: Yes. 

(Whereujon, the chart above-referred to ves marked 
Exhibit 1.) 

IV*R. FRCHLING: Let me ask a s imple ques t ion now, 

BY r"R. i'ROHLING: 

3 What did this do to the projected $55*67 cost which 
was projected on a $5,000 Assessment with 100-foot of frontage? 

A I believe that %55-n\;a\.er that you are reading 
is not for the firnt year, that is for the 15th year. 

MR. FRolILING: First yoar. 

A This is $55-67 on 100 feet. It held that, yes, sir. 
But that amount is the amount to repay back the authorized amount 
that we have. 

I? you authorize the increase that we are asking for, it 
will be increased by about a 1/3 again above that number, but will 
still be below the number given to the average home owner in the 
report. 

Q You are getting us all confused now. 

We have projected earlier this year a cost of $55.67, 
the initial year for a $5,000 assessment with 100-foot frontage. 

A That has held. 

q That has held? 

A Yes. That is the bill that went out. 

Q That would not increase at all? 

A Not in the taxable year that we are in, no. 

Q Will it increase next year or the following year? 

A Yes, it will, if you, tonight, authorize the increase. 

It will increase by about a third over this amount. 

However, with that increase added on, if you do 
authorize this, that amount will still be below what was originally 
indicated in the 1964 report. 

Q Which was $85, approximately? 

A $88, I believe. 

EXAMINATION BY 

MR. WA3?ZMAN: 

Q Let me ask, for the record, if I may interrupt, I 
just want to keep sequence going. 

Mr. outtie, is it correct that the state Department 
of Auditing and Control, having reviewed your request for an increase 
from $,450,000 to $2,?30,000 predicated in your report on the in­
crease of labor and materials, did on October 9, 1968 approve that 
increase having verified the fibres which were submitted? 
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GEORGE bU TIE: 

A They have, .yes. 

Q Is the scope of the subject, Mr. Suttie, still 
basically the same < xcept for the fact that there is now included 
as pert of the cost of construction repaying the entire crown of 
roads which h-"ve been affected by construction? 

A Yes. 

Q The boundaries are the same? 

A Yes. 

Q Is it correct also to say that the benefits to 
the community will remain the sane, even with this increase that 
we are requesting? 

A I believe they will. 

MR. WAITZMAN: The Town Board may ask whatever-
questions they have. 

BY MR. BCLANDER: 

3 Mr. auttie, I would like to get back into the 
testimony that you have given and try to refrenh your memory re­
garding the second or the first meeting which was in July, as I 
recall, in 1968. 

A Yes. 

Q At which time there was a bid submitted, as I 
recall, somewhere around, give or take, somewhere around $2,000,000, 
$2,430,000. 

A $1,755,000. 

Q $1,7555,000? 

A Yes. 

Q At that time, if you recall, I asked you, and the 
Town Board apparently agreed prior to coming on in public session, 
whether or not these bids should be resubmitted. 

A Yes. 

Q This was the district we are talking about now? 

A Yes. 

Q The reason being that the percentage of increase 
at that time presumably was somewhere up around 52%; is that 
correct? 

A 58%. 

Q And on the resubmission when the second bid came 
in it was $200,000 below? 

A That is true, sir. 

Q Do you recall my asking you whether or not the 
same set of specifications were contained in the second date? 

A Yes. 

Q *nd your answer, sir? 

A Yes, I said in effect it had been, yes. 

file:///nued
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GEORGE 3UTTIE: 
1 But actually, in effect, it isn't, is it, because 

we sre now including repavement of roads? 

A That was in the original bid, 

Q Was there anything added to the original bid? 

A No, sir, there was not. 

'4 The sane set of specifications? 

A Yes. 

Q The same boundary lines? 

A Yes. 

The same pipe lines, yes. 

'} And it came in $200,000 below? 

A Yes, sir, it came in $200,00 below. 

As I remember, it was one of the contractors who 
submitted that bid who was $200,000 below, and the next highest 
bidder, the next man, was $200,000 higher, or right back up in the 
area. 

3 Was the first man, the man who got the bid, how­
ever, sir? 

A No. 

Q The same man won who got the second bid? 

A No, sir, it was not. 

3 It was not? 

A No. 

^ Was that Allstate, as I recall? 

A Allstate got the second bid, he was number three, 
I believe, in the other bid. 

Q Now, Mr. Belsie (phonetic) at one time during an 
argument that we had regarding the cost of construction, gave a 
figure of 6% on a yearly basis, as I recall. 

Are you changing your figure based on new estimates? 

A Well, then, if you want to put it like that, I 
could, yes. I believe in the testimony I just gave I said the 
the average annual amount over the 40-year length was 8% in the 
1964 and 1965. Now, in 1968, and I don't have it here, I have it 
in the office, it has gone up to over 10%. 

q 10% increase? 

A Yes. 

ME. WAITZKAN: I must, at this point, Mr. Bolander, 
I just want to respectfully note for the record the fact that you 
must be aware. an# remember, everyone works in norms and averages 
respecting inflation. Certaninly you must have been aware of tnat 
fact. Over the last two years we" have had an inflation in terms of 
material and labor costs with respect to construction which is really 
beyond the norm. It is a matter of common knowledge that we have 
had this problem today. 

MR. BOLANDER: I don't get it, but I want to es­
tablish that. 
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GEGRGE SUTTIE: 

MR. WAITZMAK: I was hoping we were having questions, 
not argument. 

MR. BGLANDER: It was a question, not an argument. 

The two questions that I have, you mentioned earl­
ier , and I would like to get into this, that when you made your first 
estimates in 1964 there was a hold-up. Would you elaborate on that 
a little bit? 

THE WITNESS: I said a hold-up, what I meant by this, 
the estimate was made, or the report was submitted in the early part 
of 1964. There was a certain anr-unt of contingency allowances in 
that estimate, but not as high as you would ordinarily apply to an 
estimate because the thinking at that time was that construction 
would begin in the summer months of 1964. 

There was a delay in the County being able to supply 
the interceptor lines and the trunk lines to come up from the Orange­
burg plant through Crangetown and Kanuet and West Nyack up along the 
west shore of the lake and cutting around. As a matter of fact, that 
whole line is just within a month of being completed as it is, so even 
if our sewer district were done we still couldn't hook up yet. So 
it was the delay in the County being able to effectively start con­
st ruet ion. 

MR. BCLANDER: Just two short questions. 

BY MR. BOLANDER: 

Q One is, if this is passed tonight, you mentioned the 
added contingency or added expenses involved in sewer inspection, for 
a number of sewer inspectors? 

A Yes. 

$ Are we saying that we would heve to have a large 
number of sewer inspectors to take care of this Job? 

A I am saying that possibly at the time, in 1964f be­
fore it was done, it was a combination of the Town on that date, 
through their, perhaps, inexperience in knowing the magnitude of what 
the sewer work is, had felt that it could be handled out of the Town 
Engineer's office. It is not able to be done that way, and the 1'own 
has, through our office working in conjucction with the 'A'own Engineers, 
the Town Engineer and Mr. Adams, the Town Sewer Coordinator, have 
put inspectors on to supervise the construction of the work. 

I will also say, however, that I did not — I won't 
put it that way — it was entirely, even though the Town had to do 
it on their own, there would have been a cost inheriting that to the 
Town, that the Town could have been reimbursed from the sewer area, 
and therefore, it should have been added into the estimate at that 
time, no matter who was going to pay for it. Cur office, or myself, 
at that time, did not include that in the estimate. I left it out at 
that date, sir. 

Q The last question is, when do you expect, what esti­
mate do you have for the completion of Sewer District 19 fully 
operated? 

A Fully operated? 

Q Yes? 

A Complete as an area as a whole, 100%, we now estimate 
July of 1969. 

The area is quite an extensive area, extending from Route 
304 down. There is a trunk-line that feeds at the upper end, because 
all of tvis area comes into it, that trunk-line is pretty well in and 
built. 
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GEORGE SUTTIE: 

Homes in this upper area would be able to possibly as early as 
April be giv n permission to connect in that upper area. But by the 
time the whole thing is completed, every home i.; authorized to hook 
up by July. 

4 I said fully operative, I didn't mean just operative, 
I mean fully operative. 

operative. 

A Well, ~ 

MR. MUNDT: You better not hook UD if it, is not 

THE WITNESS: In terms of the 8-inch sewer line and 
the 6-inch stubs that went off the sewer line beyond the edge of the 
streets, every house or empty lot in the area, tvey will be operative. 
Any houses will then be authorized that they may now connect* It 
will be fully operative. 

MR. BOLANDER: That is all the questions I have. 

MR. MUNDT: Any other questions, Councilmen? 
Does anyone in the audience h-ve any questions? 

MRS. ARTHUR BLAUVELT: My first reason for question­
ing here is that I was led astray by the wording in the notice, be­
cause it said to me that there was generally increased cost of labor 
and materials, preliminary cause and costs incidental thereto. 

MR. MUNDT: For the record, Mrs. Blauvelt, may I es­
tablish, do you live within the district? 

MRS. BLAUVELT: Yes, West Kyack, New York. 

MR. MUNDT: Within District 19? 

MRS. ELAUVELT: Ko, I do not. 

MR. MUNDT: You are within the next district? 

MRS. ELAUVELT: Yes. 

MR..MUNDT: Are you referring then to this hearing 
or the next hearing? 

MRS. BLAUVELT: To 19. 

MR. MUNDT: District 19? 

MRS. BLAUVELT: Yes. In listening to Mr. Suttie, he 
explained that there was an interest cost which had bearing on this. 
Now, am I reading this wrong or does it say interest cost in the word 
incidental? Perhaps you could lead me right, Mr. Tracy? 

MR. MUNDT: Mr. Suttie, will you kindly answer. Did 
you hear the question? 

THE WITNESS: I did not prepare that. I am not sure 
I could answer it. 

MR. TRACY: Certainly, interest cost would certainly be 
cost incidental thereto. 

MRS. BLAUVELT: Not to labor and materials? Is that 
through the eyes of the beholder? 

MR. TRACY: And the cost incidental thereto. 

M:S. BLAUVELT: Fine. That takes care of that question. 
I understand that not one of you are an engineer, not are you expected 
to answer as engineers, but I don't feel that there is any competitive 
bidding here. When the bids were entered in July of 1968, the contract 
was awarded in Septem er of 1968, and in Cctober of 1968 the State 
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controller condones a three-quarter of a million doEar increase. 
Now, in fact, wv-«t we have here is the lowest bidder. By bidding 
the lowest bid he is receiveing, or the package or whatever '.hat 
rae;ms, receives only $155,881.60 over the highest bidder. Now, that 
sakes me ask, why was the highest bidder almost 3600,000 smarter? 

MR. MUKDT: How many bids did you receive? 

MRS. BJ.AEVELT: Eight. 

THE WITf̂ ESS: Eight bids. 

MR. MUKDT: They v/ere rejected. In the first in­
stance , how many? 

THE WITNESS: In the first instance, eight bids. 
They were all rejected. 

Hit. MU.\ DT: All rejected? 

THE WITNESS: Yes. 

MR. WAITZMAN: By the direction of the Town Board. 
This is certainly the one instance where no allegation can be made of 
the fact that there was no competition. This was an instance where 
the Town Board, hcving received eight bids which they felt v/ere high, 
directed the engineers to resubmit the thing for public bidding. On 
the second time around there was proven to be a subsrantial savings. 

I might point out that it was one of the questions 
I was going to ask Mr. Suttie at the conclusion, the fact that we are 
asking for the increase to the 32,230,000 figure, does that mean that 
that money has to be spent. 

We hope that there will be at least a savings of 
$200,000 resulting from the fact that we did have most strenuous com­
petitive bidding on the letting of this contract. There is that pros­
pective saving to members of this particular district. 

MRS. BLAUVELT: The adoption on September the 5th of 
the bid that is now being accepted, was that the first bid or the 
second bid? 

THE WITNESS: I believe th t you might be getting 
what we are saying os the first bid or the second bid mixed up. 

We had eight men bid in one instance. 

MRS. BLAUYELT: Right. 

THE WITNESS: We put them all out. We had a second 
bid. 

MES. BLAUVELT: What was date? 

THE WITNESS: August 21. 

MRS. BLAUVELT: That was the one that was accepted? 

THE WITNESS: The second bid came in. We accepted 
the lowest bid of the second set of bids. 

MRS. Blauvelt 3 o t n e n j ^ dealing with the right 
figures. 

I just wonder, was there a bonding referendum for 
the fntire Town of Clarkstown? 

If so, how much, and are we going to overextend this 
by these increases? 

MR. MUNDT: Mr. Suttie? 

THE WITNESS: May I answer that? 

MR. MUNDT: Yes. 
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THE WITNESS: The cc-i-t that v.e are speaking about 
tonight is wholly attributable to wholly the responsibility of 
only those home owners, only those owners within the area we are 
speaking about. It does not affect anyone else within the Town who 
lives outside that area. 

MK.J. ELAUVEL'I: Eut that increase is going to have 
an overall impact on the total amount that was to be expended, and 
agreed upon by the Town's people in the initial development of sew­
ers. 

THE WITNESS: No. 

What you are talking about, when you first held a 
vote, which we did as a Town, as a whole, which included our Town, 
Hainapo and Orangetown, that vote was for the plant interceptor lines, 
the plant interceptor lines. That is not run by the Town, but is a 
County agency. They held their hearings, they held their referendum 
on the amount, and as far as I know, to this date, had been able to 
stay within that amount. 

What v/e are talking about here is the cost to connect 
homes, individual homes in an area to that, and the amount we are 
speaking about here is only to those home owners within the sewer 
district we are speaking about. 

If you are away from where the line goes, you don't 
have to pay. 

MRS. 3LAUVELT: I understand what the cost per dis­
trict is. What I am wondering is, is there an overall eost in the 
Town that was agreed upon by the Town's people? 

How you slice the pie makes no difference. If the 
total overall cost was to be — 

MR. MUNDT: These questions ere out of order for the 
simple reason they are not pertinent to this hearing. 

I you will confine your questions to this particular 
district, we will be glad to have them answered. 

MRS. BLAUVELT: Forgive me for my ignorance. I want­
ed to find out whether or not there was an overall cost extablished 
for the Town. flow you have established that. It is not for the Town, 
it is only for districts; is that correct? 

MR. MUNDT: Correct. 

MRS. BLAUVELT: I just wondered why, not being an 
engineer, but trying to absorb these figures, I just can't possibly 
understand a three-quarter of a million dollar raise one month after 
the bids were accepted. 

THE WITNESS: Well, it was not a three-quarter of a million 
dollar raise one month after the bids. 

As a result of the amount of the bids, as a result 
of the amount of t e bids we received, we can see it was three-quart­
ers of a million dollars higher than had originally been authorized. 
We had to submit it to Albany to get an authorization from Albany to 
to get an authorization from Albany to hold a hearing, which we are 
holding now, to actually authorize that amount to be spent. That took 
a month or more than a month's delay in getting that sent to Albany 
and getting an okay back from Albany on it. 

What you think is adding on to the bid afterwards is 
not, in fact, so. It is a continuation of the steps involved to get 
authorization to accept the bid that was the lowest bid. 

MR. WAITZKAN: Can I answer that also to this extent. 
I think many of us have forgotten that with respect to Sewer District 
Ho. 19 it was established on August 17, 1964, and it was over four and 
a half years later that our bids came in, and the result of litigation 
which was beyond our control, certainly, I don't want to to into the 
reasons for that litigation, I can only say thpt I h*ve figured out 
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that in terms of my arithmetic that the litigation, in effect, is 
costing this district about 3175?0C0 per year, because if yor want 
to rough it out in terms of the increase th-t we requested, $780,000, 
that for a half year delay resulted in an increase of close to 
#780,000. With soae farsight the Town Board h ving rejected bids, it 
is possibly going to save us another $200,000, and as a resident in 
this district I cr.n only say I am grieved oy the delay and increase 
of costs, but we h ve been able to limit these costs, and we are 
compelled to ccme into the Town Board to request the increase to take 
care of the project. This is why we are here, 

MR. HCL/tNDEh: In terms of going to Audit and Con­
trol, I know we have to b^ve a resolution at the Town Board level 
authorizing you to go to Audit and Control for the incrensed amount. 
The word pro-forma is constantly being used. Is it not true that 
this is just a procedural matter, that the otate in no way is approv­
ing this increase? 

MR. WAl'i'ZMAN: I tvink that you have to conclude 
that the State is approving this increase, and I respectfully suggest 
that there is really nothing pro-forma in the manner in which the 
Department of Audit and Control is run by Arthur Levitt. 

MR. FUND?: Audit and Control is keeping a strong 
eye on bonded indebtedness. 

MR. WAITZMAXT: Mr. Bolander, a very lengthy summary 
of facts was submitted to Auditing and Control. There were telephone 
conferences between myself and Mr. Suttie with Albany. They were 
reviewing figures. They just didn't accept figures form a piece of 
paper. We did not h-ve to go to Albany, but we had to justify the 
reasons for the indrease. 

MR. BCLAIIDER: Thank you for establishing that. 

MRo. BLAUYELT: Jui-t one last question. I hope it 
doesn't sound trite, but what will happen if the Town Board denies 
the increase? 

MR. MUNDT: Which of you would like to answer that 
question? 

THE WITNESS: Well, we authorized the contractor — 
I say "we", the Town of Ciarkstown, the Town Board, on the advice of 
Mr. Waitzman and myself — we authorized a contract to be signed by 
Allstate after review of the fact that it was so much substantially 
below the previous bids, and below what we might have expected the 
cost to be. The contract was signed on that day that if in the 
event that the Town Board, after holding a hearing authorized by the 
State Department of Audit and Control felt that they did not at that 
time want to go ahead with it, that the contractor would be stripped 
of the contract, so to speak, and all work would stop. 

In fact, however, and this has to be said, I believe, 
in fact, however, there will then be half of the sever system in dis­
trict 19 built, and the other half won't be able to be built, and 
that some day it will h. ve to be built and the cost will be higher. 

MR. MUNDT: I think, Mr. Suttie, that a point you 
made is critical to the entire discussion, I would just like to re­
affirm it. That is that this Town Board in totalitr* made a judgment 
that it should not go to Audit and Control, and increase what we 
knew the additional cos would be predicated on construction cost 
index, et cetera. Consequently, we authorized our engineers, and we 
ourselves voted to go to bid to establish rather than key in some 
contractor or contractors that if they saw it going to Audit and 
Control for a higher amount predicated on the four-year span of time, 
they would automatically increase their bids to the district. This 
board unanimously decided the prudent thing to do is to establish the 
area of these bids without tipping off the contractors that we expect­
ed it to be higher. It turned out indeed to be higher. Even on that 
we rejected the bids because it was too high. As a result, we had a 
lower bid on the second go-arcund, and this board established, awarded 
to the lowest bidder. 
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GEChGL oUTTIE: 

What we are trying to do now is gc, as we h "e, to Audit and Control, 
gotten our approval. We could have done this before, we did it after, 
and we think we saved the Town money, the people :n the district. 

Mr. Blauvelt. 

MR. 3LA1 7EI.T: How can you say you are saving the Town 
money when the amount you are asking for, plus the lowest bid, is higher 
than the highest bid? 

That is my question. 

MR. MUNDT: Mr. outtie. 

THE wTL'NEoC: I don't think, and possibly it was the ex­
planation I made with the chart as it looks here, the total that ve are 
asking for is the total expense of all things that are involved in con­
struction of a newer line. That includes the cost of the man who was the 
low bidder that the Town Board accepted. Beyond that it includes the 
cost of the attorney's fees, the interest rates, the stake-out work, the 
easement work, the engineering work, the survey work, and we have pay­
ment of certain monies to collect which were expended. All of these 
things you ad:ed up go to make a project amount , not a construction 
amount, an amount of all, with all the incidental things involved. 

If in fact we had received a bid that was $200,000, or 
$300,000 higher, the cost we would be asking for would be a commensurate 
amount lower. 

MR. BLAUVELT: But what you are saying then is the con­
tractor, Allstate, will or.ly receive the amount that they bid? 

THE WITNESS: That's right, yes. 

MR. BLAUVELT: All other monies over and above, what­
ever the amount was, goes to other people o'-tside of this contractor? 

THE '-.1TNES3: It can if the total is spent, which we 
don't anticipate to spend. It goes to others, or other areas, or other 
things that it has to be spent for. 

MR. BLAUVELT: Every dolloar over and above what he bid 
goes to someone else, none of this goes to him? 

THE WITNESS: That is right, yes. 

MR. KUNDT: Yes, sir. 

MR. MAHCXEY: My name is James Mahoney, New City, New 
York. 

MR. Mundt, as Mr. Frchling was, I too was a little con­
fused with some of the figures that Mr. Suttie read off. However, I 
would first like to ascertain one thing: he mentioned a $15,000 note 
from HUD. Is this standard practice for all sewer districts? 

THE W J'; NESS: No. In this particular instance what 
happened was in 1964- when the Town decided that they wanted to investi­
gate this area to see if it could support and would be interested to set 
themselves up to get pipe lines in, rather than expend funds of the Town 
to do the engineering work to set the area up, and then have it happen 
that the people in the area said no, and therefore the 315*000 was spent 
and you never got it back, they went to HUD end got a loan, a £15,000-
interest -free loan from HUD. That said if you spent this to your en­
gineering, hold your hearings, and homeowners in the area say no, we 
don't want it, then you don't owe us a thing back. You don't h*ve to 
pay it. We did all the preliminary engineering without putting a cent 
of Clarkstown's money on the line. 
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If they do vant it, and to ahead with it, you are 
subject to pay that rcone; back p.v. part of your overall expenses. 

BY MR. BCLA^IDER: 

3 That 315,000 is for one district? 

A Just for that one, sir. 

3 Why was it just for that one district, George? 

A That represents roughly one percent of the estimate. 
It was for the investigation work in the area, our engineering fee to 
do the report, set it up. 

As a natter of fact, it has on the front of the report 
that it is money given to Clarkotown b; HUD and HUD was actually a part­
ner in this, and set the fee, actually. 

Q This, the setup, was this also a $15,000 fee for District 
8 and District 16? 

A No. 

Q Or is District 19 the one that is carrying the ball? 

A District 19 had a $15,0C0-fee attributable to the re­
port. District 8 might have an $8,000-loan. District 18 might have had 
a higher one. It would depend entirely upon the area. 

Q Each district does have to pay back to HUD? 

A Not all of them. 

There was a time th8t HUD had so many applications that 
they couldn't continue. By then the Town knew that the impetus in the 
Town was to go ahead with it, and they could lay advance money of their 
own. 

MR. MAHCNEY: My second questions is: you mentioned the 
fact that there was a five percent hike in view of the fact that the 
r6ad had to be repaved in their entirety. I would presume that that was 
part and parcel of the bid specifications that went out for the district? 

THE WITNESS: T) at is true, yes. 

MR. MAHGNEY: Thank you. 

Now, to get down to some of the percentages, and I come 
up with some interesting figures. 

( SEE COMPLETE STEKCGRATHERS MINUTES FOR PUBLIC HEARING HELD 2/19/69 
FOR SEWER DISTRICT NO. 19 IN SEWER FILE FOLDER FOR DISTRICT NO. 19.) 

TOWN OF CLANK-TOWN: COUNTY OF ROCKLAND 

PUBLIC HEARING 

ON 

PROPOSED INCREASE IN MAXGKUM AMOUNT TO _>E EXPENDED FOR IM'RCVEMENT IN 
SEWER DISTRICT NO."27 

February 19, 1969 
From 10:45 to 11:00 P.M. 

Appearance: 

Alexander Teitler, Esq., 
Attorney for Sewer District No. 27 
200 Main Street 
Nanuet, New York 
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B e f o r e : 

PA;'L F. KUKDT, ES.}. , oupervisor 

DLEALD S. TRACY , ES >. , Town Attorney 

JAKES V. DAMIAKI, Eo^., Councilman 

PHILIP J. FRCHL3:;G, ES'^., Councilman 

PRAi-IK BOLAI^DER, JR., E;> > Councilman, and 

MR,;. AIT::E E. C'CGMJGH, Town Clerk. 

Supervisor Mundt called Public Henring to order. 

Notice of Public Hearing was read by Anne E. O'Connor, Town Clerk. 

( SEE TOWN CLERKS FILES, SEWER DISTRICT NO. 2?, for VERBATIM MINUTES. 
DATED 2/19/69 ) 

Signed^ 

Anne E. O'Connor 
Town Clerk 
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Present: Councilnen inlander, -jan;iani, Fr^hiing, Supervisor tfundt 
Town Attorney 
Fi rt Deputy Town Attorney 
Deputy Town Attorney 
Dep1 ty Town Attorney in Charge of Special Districts 
Town Clerk 

Absent: Councilman Brenner 

Supervisor Mucdt called Town Board meeting to order at 
8.00 PH. 

(130) Councilman Frohling offered the following resolution: 

WHEREAS, AR1-EN PERATIKG CORP. made application for a Special 
Permit for a gas filling station to be located in the Korvette Shopping 
Center on the southerly side of Koute 59 in the Kamlet of Nanuet, New 
York, pursuant to Section 8.333 and 3.11 (Table of General Use Regula­
tions) of the Zoning Ordinance of the Town of Clarkstown, and 

WHEREAS, after due notice published and posted, a public 
hearing was held before the Town Board on the 19th day of June, 1968, at 
8:30 P.M., in the 'l"own Hall, 10 Maple Avenue, New City, Town of Clarks-
town, New York, to consider such application; 

NOW THEREFORE, the Town Board makes the following Special 
Findings pursuant to Section 4.31 of the Zoning Ordinance of the Town of 
Clarkstown, 

THAT, the proposed use as described and represented by the 
applicant 

(1) will be properly located with respect to transportation, 
water supply, waste disposal, fire and police protection, and other 
public facilities; 

(2) will not cause undue traffic congestion or crete a 
traffic hazard; 

(3) will not create at any point of determination set forth 
in Sections 4.16, 4.1? and 4.18 of the Zoning Ordinance of the Town of 
Clarkstown any more dangerous and objectionable elements referred to in 
Section 4.11 than is characteristic of the use expressly permitted as 
of right in the same district; 

(4) will not adversely affect the character of, or property 
values in, the area; 

(5) will not otherwise impair the public health, safety, 
morals, convenience, comfort, prosperity, and other aspects of the gen­
eral welfare of the Town; 

(6) will comply with all other requirements applicable to 
such use; 

(7) will be situated on a plat with an area of at least 
20,000 square feet and 0 minimum lot frontage of 150 feet and that no 
repairs will be undertaken or made on the premises and that all gaso­
line pumps will be set back at least 20 feet from the front lot line; 
all of said requirements, with the exception of prohibition against 
repairs, being pursuant ot Column 3* Section 3«H» Table of General Use 
Regulations of The Zoning Ordinance of the Town of Clarkstown; 

(8) will be screened along any lot line where the gas filling 
station is located on a lot, any lot line of which lies within 25 feet 
of an R District or SC District boundary, and flood lighting shall be 
arranged so there will be no glare of light toward such district bound­
ary, pursuant to Column 8, Section 3.H, Table of General Use Regula­
tions of the Zoning Ordinance of the Town of Clarkstown; 
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(9) thnt the site is no closer tr.nn JCC ft. to a school, curch, or 
place of -lKi-oirM;/, end rh.-t within ?5 feet of residential districts, 
no vel c^e may continually be r r'• d outside for a period exceeding 
three daya ana no ous or truck over l>i- ton c^pacit; or more than two 
private prmsenger cars nay be parked over any one night, 

i:CW THEREFORE, BE IT 

F'dtPi'Ek RESOLVED, that a Special Permit for a gas filling 
station pursuant to said application is hereby granted and the reasons 
for granting such special permit are that the proposed use of the prem­
ises will be for the convenience, comfort, prosperit , and general 
welfare of the community; and be it 

FURTHER RL.A.LYLJ, that the within Special Findings and 
Resolution setting forth the reasons for granting such special permit 
shall constitute a written report to be filed with the Town Clerk pur­
suant to Section 8.334- of the Zoning Crdinance of the Town of Clarks-
town. 

Dated: February 19, 1969 

1* Provided that Arlen Cperating Corp. plants trees and 
shrubs within the state right-of-way under .jurisdiction of the Clarks-
town >̂hade Tree Comrission., and 

2. Provided that should the state desire to widen Route 
59 at any time, that said taking will be automatically deeded free 
of charge to the governing municipalities. 

Seconded by Councilman Damiani. 

On roll call the votes were as follows: 

AYES: Councilsien Damiani, Frohling, Supervisor I-iundt 
NOES. Councilman ^olander 

(131) Councilman Frohling offered the following resolution: 

RESOLVED, based upon recommendation of the Supt. of High­
ways, that resolution No. 103 adopted at 1/31/69 Town Board meeting 
which set date and time for opening of bids for furnishing # Ton 
Pickup and two 5 Cu. Yd. Pickups to the Highway Department be rescind­
ed, and be it 

FURTHER RESOLVED, that time for opening of said bids be 
changed to 3/19/69 at 8:05 P.M. 

Seconded by Councilman Damiani. All voted Aye. 

(132) Councilman Colander offered the following resolution: 

RESOLVED, that regular Town Board meeting be adjourned in 
order to hold scheduled public hearings. 

Seconded by Councilman Frohling. All voted Aye. 

(133) Councilman ^amiani offered the following resolution: 

RESOLVED, that Town Board meeting be resumed, scheduled 
public hearings having been heard. 

Seconded by Councilman Bolander. All voted Aye. 
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(13*0 Councilman r'r-̂ hlinr offered the followinr resolution: 

WiihkbAo, the Town of Cla:* >. tov:n is desirous of entering 
into an arrt ement with Crafonere states, Inc. in connection with 
dedication of roaciu in Crapaere Estries West; 

NOV TilEREFCME, be it 

RES^LV^D, that the oupervisor of the Town of ^lar'stown is 
authorized to execute an agreement with Cragmere Estates, Inc. of Hew 
City, New York, providing for the deposit of $300.00 with the Town of 
Clar/stown by said Cragmere Estates, Inc. to be held by the Town pend­
ing final and complete improvements of the roads in said development 
by the developer, subject to final approval of the Town Engineer and 
the Superintendent of Highways of the Town of Ciarkstown, and be it 

FURTHER kLoLLVED, that the deposit of 5300.00 be made to 
the Town of Ciarkstown by aforesaid developer and held by the Town of 
Ciarkstown pending full ccm;liance with the requirements of the Shade 
Tree Committee of the Town of Ciarkstown. 

Seconded by Councilman Damiani. All voted Aye. 

The following Maintenance Bonds, ap-rovinc same as to form 
and sufficiency: 

Republic Insurance Com:any Maintenance Bond #903169 (w/RIDER) 
CRAGMERE ESTATES VEST, Princ. (Rapkin) 
Amount: $700.00 
Period: One (1) year 12/24/68 - 12/23/69 
Covers: Inr rovements 

Republic Insurance Company Maintenance Bond #903168 
CRAGHErE ESTATES VEST, Frinc. (Rapkin) 
Amount: $2,350.00 
Period: One (1) year 
Covers: Improvements 

(135) Councilman Frohling offered the following resolution: 

VHEREAS, the Town of Ciarkstown is desirous of entering 
into an agreement with Slek Corporation in connection with dedication 
of roads in Corral Estates; 

NOV THEREFORE, be it 

RESOLVED, that the Supervisor of the Town of ̂ larkstown is 
authorized to execute an agreement with Slek Corporation of Spring 
Valley, New York, providing for the deposit of $200.00 with the Town 
of Ciarkstown by said Slek Corporation to be held by the Town pending 
final and complete improvements of the roads in said development by 
the developer, subject to final approval of the Town Engineer and the 
Superintendent of Highways of the Town of Clar" stown. 

Seconded by Councilman Damiani. All voted Aye. 

Town Board signed the following Maintenance Bonds, approving 
same as to form and sufficiency: 

Republic Insurance Company Maintenance Bond #903099 (V/RIDER) 
CORRAL ESTATES Subdivision 
Amount: $7,960.00 
Period: One year 2/16/68 - 2/15/69 
Covers: Improvements 
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Republic Insurance wcn;any Maintenance Bond #903100 
(W/RIDER) 

GCn:-.AL ESTATES SUBDIVISION 
Acount: $2,300.00 
Period: One Year - 12/3/68 - 12/4/69 
Covers: Improvements 

(136) Councilman Frogling offered the following resolution: 

WHEREAS, the '̂own of Clarkstown is desirous of entering 
into an agreement with Lake DeForest Development Corporation in 
connection with dedication of roads in Thorawood Hills subdivision; 

NOV/ THEREFORE, be it 

RESOLVED, that the Supervisor to the Town of ^lar-stcwn 
is authorized to execute an agreement with Lake DeForest Develop­
ment Corporation of Congers, New York providing for the deposit 
of $2000.00 with the Town of l̂ar- stown b- said Lake Deforest 
Development Corporation to be held by the Town pending final and 
complete improvements of «.re roads in said development by the 
developer, subject to final approval of the Town %igineer and the 
Superintendent of Highways of the Town of Clarkstown. 

Seconded by Councilman Damiani. All voted Aye. 

Matter of Establishment of Proposed Sewer District No. 
33 tabled for further discussion. 

(137) Councilman Frohling offered the following resolution: 

WHEREAS, the Town Board of the Town of ^larVstown 
(herein called "Town Board" and "Town", respectively), in the 
County of Roc«land, New York, has heretofore duly caused Charles 
R. Velzy, Associates, Inc., P. E., consulting engineers duly-
licensed by the State of New York, to prepare a general map, plan 
and report relating to the establishment of proposed Sewer district 
No. 36, in the Town (herein called "District"), as hereinafter de­
scribed and for the construction of a lateral sewer system therein, 
and has duly appropriated a specific amount to pay the cost there­
of, which map, plan and report have been duly filed in the office 
of the Town ^lerk of the Town for public inspection; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to order duly adopted on December 18, 
1968, the Town Board determined to proceed with the establishment of 
the District and the construction of such lateral sewer system 
therein and adopted an order reciting a description of the bound­
aries of the District in a manner sufficient to identify the lands 
included therein as in a deed of conveyance, the improvements pro­
posed, the maximum amount proposed to be expended for such improve­
ments, including acquistion of the necessary land and rights in 
land, the proposed method of financing to be employed, the fact 
that a map, plan and report describing the same are on file in the 
Town Clerk's Office for public inspection and specifying February 
5, 1969, at 8:43 o'clock P.M. (E.S.T.) as the time v;hen, and the 
Town Hall, 10 Maple Avenue, New City, in the Town, as the place 
where, the Town Board would meet to consider establishment of the 
District and the construction of a lateral sewer system therein, 
and to hear all persons interested in the subject thereof concern­
ing the same, and for such other action on the part of the Town 
Board in relation thereto, as may be required by Law; and 

WHEREAS, certified copies of such Order were duly pub­
lished and posted pursuant to the provisions of Article 12-A of 
the Town Law; and 
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Wilr.HLx-.̂ , a public he;;rir.r in the matter v:r:.- duly held by the 
Town Board on this 5th day of February, 1969» coinr encinr; at 8:4-5 o'clock 
P.M. (E.S.T.), at said Town Hril, at which ail interested persons desir­
ing to be heard were heard, including t;oce in favor of, and those 
opposed to, the establishment of the District and construction therein 
of such lateral sf-wer system; 

now, therefore, upon the evidence adduced at such public hear­
ing be it 

HESCLVED BY THE ICWK BOARD CF THE TCWr' OF C L A H F O T L W K , IN 
THE COUNTY OF RCCKL^ D, IJEW YORK, Ac FCI.LOV.'S: 

Section 1. It is hereby deter; ined that 

(a) the notice of public hearing was published and posted as 
required by law, and is otherwise sufficient; 

(b) all the property and property owners included within the 
District hereinabove referred to in the recitals hereof are benefited 
thereby; 

(c) all the property and property owners benefited are in­
cluded within the limits of the district; and 

(d) it is in the public interest to establish the District. 

Section 2. The establishment of the ^i^trict is hereby 
approved as hereinafter described and the proposed lateral sewer system 
therein shall be constructed as set forth in the said Order Calling the 
Public Hearing and the District shall be designated and known as Sewer 
District N. 36, in the Town of Cl^rkstown, situate wholly outside of 
any incorporated village or city, and shall be bounded and described 
as follows: 

All the map, block and lot numbers herein mentioned or de­
scribed refer to the tax maps of the Town of Clarkstown, Rockland 
County, New "ork for the year 1968 on file in the Town Assessor's 
office located in the Town Hall, 10 Maple Avenue, New City, New York. 

Easterly Boundary 

Beginning at a point on the easterly side of Long Clove Road, 
which point is the southwesterly corner of lot 98-A-8; thence generally 
northerly along the easterly boundaries of lots 98-A-8, 6.01, 6, 5» 4 
and 3 to the northeasterly corner of said lot 98-A3; thence easterly 
along the southerly boundary of lot 98-A-2 to the southeasterly corn­
er of said lot 98-A-2; thence northwesterly along the easterly bound­
ary of said lot 98-A-2 to the northerly corner of said lot 98-A-2; 
thence northeasterly along the easterly right-of-way line of Long Clove 
Road to its intersection with Scratchup Road; thence generally north­
erly across Long Clove Road and along the easterly boundary of ocratch-
up Road to the intersection of Scratchup Road with South Fountain Road, 
thence northwesterly across South fountain Road to the northerly right-
of way line of South Mountain Road; thence westerly along the said 
northerly right-of-way line of Soi;th Fountain Road to the southeaster­
ly corner of lot 99-A-2; 

Northerly Boundary 

thence northerly along the easterl; boundary of lots c>9--A-2 and 2.01 
to the northeasterly corner of said lot 99-A-2.01; t>ence westerly 
along the northerly boundary of said lot 99-A-2.01 to the northwester­
ly corner of said lot 99-A-2.01; thence generally westerly along the 
easterly and northerly boundaries of said lot 99-A-4, and along the 
northerly boundary of lot 99-A6 to its intersection with the easterly 
boundary of lot 99-A-9.02; thence northerly along the easterly bound­
aries of lots 99-A-9.02 and 9.03 to the northeasterly corner of said 
lot 99-A-9.03; thence generally westerly along the northern boundaries 
of lots 99-A-9.03, 9.07 and 11 to the westernmost corner of said lot 
99-A-ll; 
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thence easterly and southerly along the westerly br, indary of said 
lot 99-A-ll to the northeasterly corner of lot 81-A-9; thence 
westerly along the northerly bcmdsries of lots 61-A-9 and 10 to 
the northwesterly corner of s«id lot 81-A-10; thence northerly 
along the easterly boundary of lot 81-A-8 to the northeasterly 
corner of said lot 61-A-5 to the northeasterly corner of said lot 
81-A-8; thence westerly alone t n e nor*herly boundary of said lot 81-
A-8 to the northwesterly corner of said lot 81-A-8; thence souther­
ly along the westerly boundary line of said lot 81-A-8 to a point 
which lies on the westerly boundary line of said lot 81-A-8 to a 
point which lies on the northerly boundary line of lot 81-A-13; 
thence easterly along the northerly boundary lines of lots 
81-A-13, 14 and 15.01 to the northwesterly corner of lot 81-A-15-01; 
thence southerly along the westerly boundary of lot 81-A-15.01 to 
the southwesterly corner of said lot 81-A-15-01 which point is on 
the northerly right-of-way line of South Mountain Road; thence 
southerly crossing South Kountain Road to the northwesterly corner 
of lot 81-B-6; thence southerly along the westely boundary of 
said lot 81-B-6 to a point which lies on the right-of-way line at 
the end of Sandstone Trail; thence westerly along the said right-
of-way line at the end of Sandstone Trail and along the northerly 
boundary of lot 81-B-10.10 to the northwesterly corner of said lot 
81-B-10.10; thence southerly along the westerly boundaries of lots 
81-B-10.10 and 10.11 to the southwesterly corner of lot 81-B-10.il; 
thence westerly along the northerly boundary of lot 81-B-10.12 to 
the northwesterly corner of said lot 81-B-10.12; thence southerly 
along the westerly boundaries of lots 81-B-10.12 and 10.13 to the 
southweserly corner of said lot 81-B-10.13; thence easterly along 
the southerly boundary of said lot 81-B-10.13 to the northwesterly 
corner of lot Sl-B-15; thence southerly along the westerly boundary 
of said lot 81-B-15 to a point which lies on the northerly right-of-
way line of Pine Lane and also the southwesterly corner of said lot 
81-B-15; thence westerly along the northerly right-of-way line of 
Evergreen Lane; thence southerly along the westerly right-of-way 
line of Evergreen Lane to the southerly right-of-way line of Shady-
brook Lane; thence northwesterly across lot 80-A-4 and River Rise 
Road to the northeasterly corner of lot 80-A-15; thence westerly 
along the northerly boundary of lot 80-A-15 to the northwesterly 
corner of said lot 80-A-15; 

Westerly Boundary 

thence southerly following the Demarest Kill along the westerly 
boundary of lot 80-A-15 to the southwesterly corner of said lot 
80-A-15; thence southerly across Haverstraw Road to the northwesterly 
corner of lot 60-A-l; thence southerly along the westerly boundaries 
of lots 60-A-l, 80-B-36.10, 36.09 and 36.08 to the point of inter­
section with the northerly bounaary of Sewer District No. 2; 

Southerly Boundary 

thence following the northerly and easterly boundaries of Sewer 
District Ho. 2 to a point which is the southwesterly corner of lot 
79-A-6 and also the point where the boundary of existing Sewer 
District No. 2 and the boundary of proposed Sewer District No. 36 
diverge; thence easterly along the southerly boundary of lots 79-A-
6f 7,8, 8.01 and 9 to the southeasterly c rner of said lot 79-A-9; 
thence northeasterly across Goebel Road to the southwesterly corner 
of lot 79-A-l; thence northeasterly along the northerly right-of-
way line of Route 304 to its intersection with the westerly right-
of-way line of Ridge Road; thence across Ridge Road to the south­
ernmost corner of lot 97-A-6; thence northeasterly along the north­
erly right-of-way line of Route 304 to its intersection with the 
westerly right-of-way line at Long Clove Road; thence across Long 
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Clove itoad to the print of intersection of the east-, riy right-of-way 
line of Long Clove Road and the northerly right-of-way line of Route 
304; thence noK-h-rly along the er.r.erly right-of-way line of Long 
Clove Road to the ;• ecterly corner of lot q7-A-5; t ence generally 
easterly, northerly and westerly around the boundaries of said lot 
97-A-5 tc itr, northerly corner and the easterly right-of-way line of 
Long °love Road; tience northerly along the ennterly right-of-way line 
of Long Clove KOPQ to the southv.-esterly corner of lot 98-A-8, which 
point is the point and once of beginning. 

Section 3» The maximum amount proposed to be expended for 
the construction of said lcter-1 sewer system, consisting of all lat­
eral severs witvin the District tributary to the County District 
lumping Station at Old Route 304- and learl Lane which discharges area 
flow to the Lake Deforest interceptor sewer, including manholes, house 
connection stubs brought to a point one foot beyond the edge of roads, 
a pumping station to be located at Old xtoute 304-, just north of the 
Hackensack Kiver, and 'orce main, road resurfacing and ail other appur­
tenances required for a complete la*ernl sewer system, and acquisition 
of necesoary land and rights in land and original equipment, machin­
ery and apparatus, is $665,000 which is placed to be financed by the 
issuance of serial bonds of the Town and the assessment, levy and 
collection of special assessments upon the several lots and parcels 
of land in the District which the Town Board shall deem especially 
benefited by said lateral sewer system so much ULon and from each as 
shall be in just proportion to the amount of benefit which the im­
provement shall confer upon the same and the establishment and collec­
tion of sewer rents, pursuant to the Town Law, to pay the principal of 
and interest on said bonds and the costs of operation, maintenance and 
repair. 

Section 4. The Town ^lerk of the A*own is hereby authorized 
and directed within ten (10) days after the adoption of the resolution, 
to file certified copies of this resolution, in duplicate, in the 
office of the State Dep rtment of Audit and Control at Albany, New York, 
together with an application by the Town Board, in duplicate, for per­
mission to establish the District, in the Town, as herein described, 
pursuant to the provisions of said Town Law and that such publication 
shall be executed and verified by and in behalf of the Town Board by 
the Supervisor of the Town. 

Section 5« T;is resolution shall be subject t permissive 
referendum. 

The adoption of the foregoing resolution was seconded by 
Councilman Damiani and duly put to a vote on roll call, which 
resulted as follows: 

AYES: Messrs. Mundt, Dainiani, Frohling and Bolander. 

WOES: None 

The resolution was declared unanimously adopted. 

(138) Councilman Frohling offered the following resolution and 
moved its adoption. 

REGCLVED BV THE TCVK ' CARD OF THE TOWN OF CLARKSTCVN, IN TftE 
COUNTY OF RuCKLAlID, NEW :CRK, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. The Town Clerk of the Town of darkstowr., in the 
County of Rockland, New York shall, within ten (10) days after the 
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adoption by the T::wn Board cf said Town, of the resolution entitled: 

"Resolution of the Town of Giar!"ctown, l̂ ew 'fork, adopted 
February 19, 1969, approving the establishment of proposed Sewer 
District No. 36, :ln said Town and construct! n of a lateral sewer 
system therein and providing tv-at such resolution shall be subject 
to permissive referendum," 

cause to be published at least once in "THE JOURNAL I.GV.G", the 
official newspaper of the Town, and to be posted on the sign board 
of the Town maintained pursuant to subdivision 6 of Section 30 of 
the Town Law and in at least five (5) public places in the proposed 
Sewer District No. 36 in said Town of Clarlstown, a notice which 
shall set forth the date of adoption of said foregoing resolution 
and contain an abstract thereof concisely stating its purpose and 
effect. 

Section ?. Said Kotice shall be in substantia ly the 
following form: 

TOWN OF CLARr.GICWN* NEW YORK 

PLEASE AKE NC ICE that on Feoruary 19, 1%9 the Town 
Board of the Town of Clarke.own, in the County of Rocklrnd, New York, 
adopted a resolution entitled: 

"Resolution of the Town of Clarkstown, New York, adopted 
February 19, 1969, approving the establishment of proposed Sewer 
District No. 36, in said Town and construction of a lateral sewer 
system therein and providing that such resolution shall be subject 
to permissive referendum," 

an abstract of such resolution, concisely stating the purpose and 
effect thereof, being as follows: 

FIRST: RECITING that the Town Board of the Town of Clarks-
town ("Town Board" and "Town", respectively), New York, has hereto­
fore duly caused the preparation of a general map, plan and report 
relating to the establishment of proposed Sev/er District No. 36, in 
the Town, therein described and for the construction of a lateral 
sewer system therein and has duly appropriated a specifc amount to 
pay the cost thereof, which map, plan and report have been duly 
filed in the office of the Town ^lerk of the Town for public inspec­
tion ; that an order was adopted on December If, 1968, reciting a 
description of the boundaries of said proposed Sewer District No. 36 
("District") in a manner sufficient to identify the lands included 
therein as in a deed of conveyance, the improvements proposed, the 
maximum amount proposed to be expanded for such improvements, the 
proposed method of financing to be employed, the fact that a map, 
plan and report describing the same are on file in the Town ^lerk s 
Office for public inspection, and specifying the time and place of 
a public hearing to hear all persons interested in the subject 
thereof concerning the same; that copies of such Order have been 
duly published and posted; and that such hearing has been duly held 
on February 5, 1969 at the time and place specified; 
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I 

I 

I SECiND: RESCL7IKG AKD D2TE:x' INIKG THAT (a) the notice of 
hearing v as published and posted as required by law and is otherwise 
sufficient, (b) all the pro ertv and property owners within the Dis­
trict are benefited thereby, (c) all the property and property ov-nera 
benefited are included within the limits of the District and (d) that 
the establishment of the District is in the public interest; 

THIRD: FURT-ER RESOLVING AND JETERf'INIKG that the estab- B 
lishment of the District be approved, that the proposed lateral sew-
system shall be constructed therein; i)E- IGNATING such District as 
Sewer District No. 36, in the Town of Clarkstown, and DESCRI3_^G the 
District by metes and bounds; 
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expended for cons rvctior. of sai:i : tori.? sewer svstem consi.--.ting 
of al] lateral rowers v/i thin the district tri"L\;t:-iry to the County 
District lumping ot->t ' on at Cld hc-ute 304 and I-earl Lane which dis­
charges area, flow to the ^ake jeio est interceptor sewer, including 
manholes, house connection s'uls brought to a point one foot be­
yond the ed;:e of roaas, a puis;., in;- station to be located at Old Route 
304-, ,'ust north rf the Hackensack River, and force main, road resur­
facing end all other ap urtenances required for a conn lete lateral 
sewer system, is 3665,000 which is planned to be financed by the 
issuance of serial bonds of the Town tc finance such costs and the 
assessment, levy and collection of special assessments upon the 
several lots and arcels of land in the District which the Town 
Board shall deem esp€ciaiZy benefited by said lateral sewer system 
so much upon and from each as shall be in just proportion to the 
amount of benefit which the improvement shall confer upon the same 
and the establishment and collect-ion of sewer rents, pursuant to the 
Town Law, tc pay the principal of and interest on said bonds and the 
costs of operation, maintenance and repair; 

FIFTH: FURTHER ESCLYING that the Town Clerk shall within 
ten (10) days after adoption of this resolution, file certified 
copies in the office of the Department of Audit and Control, to­
gether with an application by the Town Board for permission to es­
tablish the District and that such application shali be executed 
by the Supervisor; and 

SIXTH: STATING that this resolution shall be subject tc 
permisssive referendum. 

By order of the Town Board of the Town of the Town of ^larkstown, 
in the County of Rockland, ICew York, 

Dated: February 19, 1%9 

Section 3» This resolution shall take effect immediately. 

The adoption of the foregoing resolution was seconded by 
Councilman Damiani and duly put to a vote on roll call, which 
resulted as fellows: 

AYES: Messrs. Mundt, Damiani, Frohling and Bolander 

NOES: None 

The resolution was declared unanimously adopted. 

Supervisor Mundt stated, in response to question put by 
Councilman Bolander, that in the future, if residents in proposed 
sewer district area deem costs too high, they will be polled. 

(139) Councilman Frohling offered the following resolution: 

WHEREAS, a public hearing was scheduled and published to 
be had on 2/19/69 at 8:30 P.M. in regard to the amendment of sewer 
district regulations, and 

WHEREAS, a public hearing was also scheduled on 2/5/69 to 
be had on 2/28/69 at 10:00 A. M.;" 

NOW THEREFORE, be it 

consi.--.ting
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R^O.LYEJ, thnt renolut^r: d-.ted '75/69 lie. 115, setting the 
hearing for 2/P&/69 be .̂nd i? hereby rescinded *nd the resolution of 
January IS, 1̂ 69 setting forth the hearing dote in the above matter 
for February 19, 1%9 fit 6:30 I. K. be p.na the same is hereby affirm­
ed end ratified. 

Seconded by Councilrnn i/ariiarji. All voted Aye. I 
(140) Councilman Frohling offered the following resolution: 

RESOLVED, that the decision on the proposed anendirent to the 
Building Zone Ordinance of the Town of Oi rkstown - section 3.221 is 
hereby reserved. 

Seconded by Councilman âiniani. All voted Aye. 

I 

(141) Councilman Damiani offered the following resolution: 

NOTICE Is HEREBY GIVEK that by resolution of the Town Board of 
the Town of Clarhstown adopted on the 19th day of February, 1%9, Chap­
ter 34 of the Code of the Town of Clsr'-T.town was amended and said reso­
lution provided as follows: 

WHEREAS, the Town Bo^rd of the Town of CI. rkstown, by resolu­
tion adopted on the 15th day of January , 1969, provided for a public 
hearing on the 19th day of February, 1%9 at 8:30 P.M., to consider an 
amendment to Chapter 34 of the Code of the Town of Clr-r>stown entitled 
"Sewer District Regulations", and 

WHEREAS, notice of said public hearing w: s duly published as 
required by law and said public hearing was duly held at the time and 
place specified in said notice; 

NOW THEREFORE, be it 

RESOLVED, that Chapter 34 of the Code of the Town of Clnrkstown 
entitled "Sewer District Regulations" be amended as follows: 

1. Amend Section 34—6, paragraph 1 (b) to read as follows: 

(b) That said application is accompanied by bond with 
sureties acceptable to the Board, in the sum of not 
less than Five Thousand Dollars ($5,000.00), guaran­
teeing: • •. 

Add item (6) thereto as follows: 

"(6) The applicant, in order to establish that he is 
qualified to do such work in a good workmanlike manner 
as required by sub-paragraph (a) hereto, shall be 
required to complete, under the supervision of the 
Town Engineer, a practical demonstration and install-
of a sewer hookup. Any certificate granted hereunder 
shall be issued subject to such satisfactory demonstra-
and installation under the supervision of the Town 
Engineer. For purposes of such demonstration of 
ability, the first sewer hookup accomplished by the 
applicant may be utilized to fulfill this requirement. 
However, nothing contained herein shall abrograte the 
requirement for inspection of each and every installa­
tion as hereinafter contained." 

2. Amend Section 34-6, paragraph 2 by providing as follows: 

"The applicant shall furnish certificates of public 
liability insurance for personal injuries in the 
sum of One Hundred Thousand Dollars (SI00f000.00) and 
Three Hundred Thousand Dollars ($300,000.00), and 
property damage insurance in the sum of Twenty Thou­
sand Dollars ($20,000.00) with coverage for collapse, 
explosion and underground property damage, which 
shall be for the benefit of any aggrieved party, 
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including; the Tew n and in-jor.ni fy and :;-«ve lr-.rr.less the district and 
Town, itc officers, agents nnc emyioyees, frcn all suits and actions 
for the rr-covery of damages, Doney or otherwise, for and on account 
of any injury or damages resulting ir. death or otherwise, received 
or sustanined by any person, persons cr property, as a direct or in­
direct result of any act of omission or commission of said applicant. 
Said applicai-t shall have workaens' compensation insurance as re­
quired by law, and the applications shall be accompanied by certifi­
cates thereof, or by satisfactory proof of the exemption. All of 
said policies of insu-ance shall t^ar an endorsement in favor of the 
Town of Claristown. 

Dated: February 19, 1969 

Seconded by Councilman Bol^nder. All voted Aye. 

tOO J 4 1 

(142) Councilman Frchling offered the following resolution: 

NOTICE Io HEREPY GIVE*: that by resolution of the Town 
Board of the Town of Clarkstown adopted on the 19th day of February, 
1969, Chapter ?5 of the Code of the Town of Clarkstown was repealed 
and said resolution provided as follows: 

WHEREAS, the Town Board of the Town of Clar- stown, by 
resolution duly adopted on the 31st day of January, 1969, provided 
for a public hearing on the 19th day of February, 1%9, at 8:4-5 F.M., 
to consider the repeal of Chapter ?? of the Code of the Town of 
Clarkstown entitled "Nuisances", and 

WHEi.'EAS, notice of said public hearing was duly published 
as required by law and said public hearing was duly held at the time 
and place specified in said notice; 

NOW THEREFORE, be it 

RESOLVED, that Chapter 25 of the Code of the Town of Clarks­
town entitled "Nuisances" be and is hereby repealed, and be it 

FURTHER RESOLVED, that Local Law No. 1, 1969, entitled 
"Local Law Relating to Property and Maintenance", being the same is to 
be effective simultaneously with the repeal hereof. 

Dated: February 19, 1969 

Seconded by Councilman Bolander. All voted Aye. 

(143) Councilman Frohling offered the following resolution: 

WHEREAS, a proposed local law entitled "LOCAL LAW RELAT­
ING TO LOT AND PROPERTY MAINTENANCE" was introduced by William 
Brenner, a member of the Town Board of the Town of Clarkstown at a 
Town Board meeting on January 31, 1969, and 

WHEREAS, the Town Board of the Town of Clarkstown, by reso­
lution duly adopted on the 31st day of January, 1%9, directed that a 
public hearing be held on the 19th day of February, 1969, at 9:00 P.M., 
to consider the adoption of said local law, and 

WHEREAS, a notice of said public hearing was duly prepared 
and published in the Journal News on February 7th, and posted on the 
sign board of the Town of Clarkstown on the ?th day of February, 1969, 
and 

WHEREAS, copies of the proposed local law were mailed to the 
members of the Town Board on the 3rd day of February, 1969, and 

WHEREAS, a public hearing was held by the Town Board on >he 
19th day of February, 1%9, at 9:00 P.M.; 

lr-.rr.less
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RESOLUTION # 14-3 - continued: 

At o recul<*-.r meeting of the Town Brard of the Town of 
Clarkstown in the County of Rockland held at the Town Hall, 10 Maple 
Avenue, New City, l"ew York, on February 19th, 1%9, Local Law No. 1-
1969 entitled "LOCAL LAW RELATING TO LCT AND 1RCIEHTY MAINTENANCE" 
was adopted and passed by an affirmative vote of the Majority of vot­
ing power of the Town Board of the Town of Clar ?townf the vote for 
adoption of said local law being- as follows: 

Paul F. Mundt, Supervisor AYE 
Councilman Philip J. Frohling AYE 
Councilman James V, Damiani AYE 
Councilman Frank Bolander AYE 

The Town Clerk of the Town of Clarkstown w?>s directed to 
file said local law pursuant to Section 27 of the Municipal Home Rule 
Law. 

Dated: February 19, 1969 

PROPOSED LOCAL LAW NO. 1 - 1969 
RELATI1IG TC LOT AND PROPERTY 
MAINTENANCE 

Section 1. LEGISLATIVE INTENT. 

The Town Board of the Town of Ci rksown has found it necess­
ary for the health, safety and general welfare of the residents to see 
that the lots and property within the Town are properly maintained and 
free from vermin, nuisances, hazards and litter. 

Section2. MAINTENANCE. 

No person shall hereafter be permitted to abandon, leave, 
dump, store or keep any nuisance, hazard or litter, or matter attrac­
tive to vermin, upon any public street, public place or on any privately 
owned property within the Town, and said property shall be kept free and 
clear of the same. 

Section 3- DEFINITIONS. 

a. Nuisance, hazard and litter as herein referred to shall 
include, but not be limited to, abandoned automobiles or any part 
thereof unless such party has a license to store the same, and any waste 
material, garbage, refuse, rubbish, old refrigerators, stoves, or like 
products, used bottles or cans, abandoned building or construction mater­
ials or supplies, discarded papers or material, or other junk substances, 
tree stumps or matter attractive to vermin or likely to breed disease 
or be prejudicial to good health. 

Section 4-. OWNER, TENANT, OR CCCliiANT I'UST KEEP PROPERTY CLEAN. 

The owner, tenant or occupant of property located within the 
Town of Clarkstown is hereby required to remove all nuisances, hazards 
and litter, or matter attractive to vermin, as herein above defined, 
when ordered to do so by a member of the Police Department, Fire Inspec­
tor, Superintendent of Highways or Deputy Supe intendent of Highways, 
within five (5) days of written notice therefor. Said written notice 
shall be served on the owner, tenant or occupant. If the owner of said 
lands is a non-resident of the Town of ^1arkstown, a notice to remove 
the nuisance, hazard or litter, mailed to such owner, addressed to his 
last known address, shall be sufficient service thereof. 

I 

I 

I 

I 
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Failure to ceiT:: iy v̂ it' 
Town of l̂ar'-nr̂ wr: as aforesaid, 
local lew. 

the air* -Lion of ar.y any agent of the 
.-•he: 11 constitute a violation of this 

Each < nd every viol?'ion of any o: the ;revisions of this 
local lav; of the Town of Clnrkstown shall be punishable by a fine not 
to exceed One Hundred Dollars (ilGG.CO) or by" imprisonment for not more 
than six (6) months, or by both, unlets a lesser penalty is provided by 
statute. 

In the case of continuing violation of this local law of the 
Town of Clarkstown, each day that such violation exists, shall consti­
tute a separate and distinct violation. 

I 

Section 6. REMOVAL BY TCWIi. 

The Town board, by resolutisn, may cause any nuisance, hazard 
or litter as herein defined, to be rerr.oved from any property within the 
Town of Clarkstown, upon the failure of such owner, tenant or occupant 
to comply with the written notice -fore; entioned within the time limit­
ed. Said removal may be performed by the Superintendent of Highways, or 
other designee, including a private contractor. The Town Eoard shall 
ascertain the cost of such removal and such cost shall be charged and 
assessed against the owner, tenant, or occupant of the property. The 
expense so assessed shall constitute a lien and charge on the real prop­
erty on which it is levied until paid or otherwise satisfied or dis­
charged and shall be collected in the same manner and at the same time 
as other Town charges. 

The removal of any nuisance, hazard or litter by the Town of 
Clarkstown, or its designee, shall not operate to excuse such owner, 
tenant or occupant from properly maintaining their property as herein 
above set forth and such owner, tenant or occupant shall, not withstand­
ing, be subject to the penalties above mentioned. 

Section 7. SErAKABIElTY. 

If any section, paragraph, sub-division or provision of this 
local law shall be invalid, such invalidity shall apply only to the sec­
tion, paragraph, sub-division or provisions adjudged invalid and the rest 
of this local law shall remain valid and effective. 

Section 8. EFFECTIVE DATE. 

This local law shall become effective five (5) days from the 
adoption hereof by the Town Board of the Town of Clarkstown. 

Seconded by Councilman Bolander. All voted Aye 

(144) Councilman Frohiing offered the following resolution: 

I 

I 

At a regular meeting of the Town Board of the Town of ^larks-
town, in the County of Rockland, Hew York, held at the Town Hall, 
10 Maple Avenue, New City, New York, in said Town, on the 19th day of 
February, 1969 

In the Matter of the Increase in the Maximum Amount to be expended for 
the Improvement in Sewer District Ho. 19, in the Town of Clarkstown, in 
the County of Rockland, New York: 

ORDER INCREASING THE MAXIMUM AMCUNT TC EllENDED FROM $1,4^0,000 to 
$2,230,000. 

WHEREAS, fchft Town Board of the iown of Clarkstown (herein 
called "Town"), in the County of Rockland, New York, has heretofore 
duly established Sewer District No. 19, in the Town, (herein called "Dis­
trict") pursuant to applicable provisions of the *own Law and the maxi­
mum amount proposed to be expended for the construction of a sewer sys­
tem therein as set forth in the petition submitted to said Town Board 
is $1,450,000; 
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WHEREAS, due to generally increased costs cf Icbor and 
materials, prelirri nar;; cot:ts and cctts incidental thereto said Town 
3o?rd has estimated the maximum cost cf constructing; said sev/er system 
to be &2,250,000, being an increase of £7^0,000; and 

'J'lEREAS, fo~ lowing due subnis.-ion of an application b; said 
Town Board, the State Comptroller approved the increase in the max­
imum amount to be expended for construction of said sewer svstem from 
#1,450,000 to $2,2$0,000 pursuant tc Order dated October < V 1968; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 209-h of the Town Law, said 
Town Board has duly called and held a public hearing on February 19, 
19^9, at r;he Town Hall, New City, in the Town, at 9:15 o'clock P.M. 
(E.S.T.) to consider such propored increase in the maximum amcunt to 
be expanded and to hear all persons interested in the subject thereof, 
concerning the same and for such other act:on on the part of said Town 
Board with relation thereto as may be required by law, 

now, therefore, be it 

CRDEi ED, and it is hereby determined that it is in the pub­
lic interest to increase the maximum amount proposed to be expended for 
the construction of a sewer system in the District, in the Town, from 
$1,450,000 to $2,250,000, and such maximum amount is hereby so increased. 
The plan of financing is the issuance of serial bonds of the Town and 
the assessment, levy and collection of s e c i a i assessments upon several 
lots and parcels of land in the Dirtrict which the Town 3oard shall 
determine and specify to be esp- cially benefited thereby so much upon 
and from each as shall be in Just proportion to the amount of benefit 
which the improvement shall confer upon the same to pe-- the principal 
of and interest on said bonds, and it is further 

ORDERED, that this Order shall take effect thirty days after 
its adoption, unless there shall be filed with the Town Clerk a petition 
signed and acknowledged by the owners of taxable real property situate 
in the District, as shown upon the latest completed assessment roll of 
the Town in number equal to at least five per cent of the total number 
of such owners, or by one hundred of such owners, whichever is the 
lesser, protesting against this Order and requesting that the matter 
be submitted at a referendum in the manner provided by law. 

I 

I 

I 
DATED: FEBRUARY 19, 1969 

rRESENT: 

Hon. Paul. F. Mundt, 
James V. Damiani, 
Philip J. Frohling, Jr, 
Frank Bolander, 

Seconded by Councilman Damiani. 

TOWN 5CAPD CI THE TOWN CF 
CLARKSTCWN, NEW YCRK 

Supervisor 
Councilman 
Councilman 
Councilman 

All voted Aye 

(14-5) Councilman Pro*ling offered the following resolution: 

RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN CF CLAI ESTCVN, NEW YCRK, ADOPTED FEBRUARY 1 9 , 
1969, DIRECTING THE PUBLICATION AND i-CSTING OF NOTICE AND ^BSTRACT 
OF THE ORDER OF SAID TOWN APPROVING THE INChE, SE IN THE MAXIMUM 
AMCUNT TO BE EXPENDED FOR THE IMPROVEMENT IN ^EWER DISTRICT NC. 19, 
IN SAID TOWN. 

RESOLVED BY THE TOWN BOARD OF THE TOWN OF CI Ahi.STGWN, IN 
THE COUNTY CF RCCKLAND, NEW YORK, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. The Town Clerk of the Town of Clarkstown, in 
the County of Rockland, New Yor1 , shall, within ten (10) days after 
the adoption by the xown Board of said Town, of the Order referred to 
in the follwoing notice, cause to be published at least once in the 

I 

I 
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"JOURNAL NEWS", the officia; n̂ v/ct a: t r of the low;, and to be posted 
on the sign bosrd of the Tov/r. ;;;aii."iaiij*-:-d pursuant to subdivision 6 
of Section 30 of the Town Law and in at least five (5) public places 
in the District in said Tc\;n of Clerkstown, a notice which shall set 
forth the date of ado; t'. on of said foregoing Order and contain an ab­
stract thereof concisely stating its purpose and effect. 

I 
Section 2. Said Notice shall e in substantial];,- the follow­

ing form: 

TOV/:: OR CLAR: STOW:?, NEW YORK 

I 

I 

I 

FLEASE TAKE NOTICE that on February 19, 1969, the Town 
Board of the Town of Clarhstovn, in the County of Rockland, New York, 
adopted an Order entitled: 

In the Matter of the Increase in the Kaxiirun Amount to be Expended for 
the Improvement in Sewer District No. 19, in Rockland, Hew York. 

ORDER INCREASING THE KAXIKUK AT'CNNT TO BL EXi ENDED FRCM $l,4-S0f00C TO 
#P, 230,000: 

an abstract of such Order, concisely stating the purpose and effect 
thereof, 

being as follows: 

town, has 
Town, end 
tion of a 
said Town 
labor and 

FIRST: RECITING that the Town board of the Town of Clr.ks-
heretofore duly established Sewer District No. 19, in the 
the maximum amount proposed to be expended for the construc-
sewer system therein as set forth in the petition submitted to 
Board, is £1,4-50,000 thaTdue to gernerally increased costs of 

xouwx O Uu materials, preliminary costs and costs incidental thereto, 
said Town Board has estimated the maximum cost of constructing said 
sewer system is $2,230,000, bing an increase of tJr,rC,000; that following 
due submission of an ap lication by said Town Board, the State Comptroll­
er approved the increase in the maximum amount to be expended for con­
struction of said sever system form SI,4-50,000 to $2,230,000 pursuant 
to Order dated October 9, 1966 and said Town Board has duly called and 
held a public hearing on February 19, 1969 to consider such proposed in­
crease in the maximum amount to be expended and to hear all persons in­
terested in the subject thereof, concerning the same and for such other 
action on the part of said Town Bo rd with relation thereto as may be 
required by law; 

SECOND: ORDERED AND DETE'-l'INED that it is in the public in­
terest to increase the maximum amount proposed to be expended for the 
construction of a sewer system in the District, in the Town, from 
$1,4-50,00 to $2,230,000; AUTHORIZING such increase in the maximum amount; 
STATING the plan of financing is the issuance of seriai bonds of the 
Town and the assessment, levy and collection of special assessments upon 
several lots and parcels of land in the District which the Town Board 
shall determine and specify to be especially benefited thereby so much up 
on and from each as shall be in .just proportion to the amount of benefit 
which the improvement shall confer upon the same to pay principal of and 
interest on said bonds, 

THIRD: ORDERED that this resolut'dh shall take effect thirty 
(30) days after adoption unless within such period a petition shall he 
filed with the Town Clerk protesting against this order and requesting 
that it be submitted at a referendum in the manner provided by law. 

By order of the Town Board of the 
Town of Cl.rkstown, in the County 
of Rockland, New York 

DATED: FEBRUARY 19, 1969 

ANNE E. O'CONNOR, 
Town Clerk 

Seconded by Councilman Damiani. All voted Aye, 



2/19/69 72!-

(146) Councilman Jamiani offered the following resolution: 

At P. regular ir.eetin£ of the Town Beard of the Town of 
Clarkstown, in the Count?, of l\oc/:land, Hew York, held at the Town 
Hall, 10 Maple avenue, -Jew City, hew York, in said Town, on the 
19th day of February, 1969. 

In the Hatter of the Increase in the Maximum Amount to 
be Expended for tae Improvement in Sewer Di. trict Ho.27, in the Town 
of Clarkstown, in the County of Rockland, New York. 

ORDER INCREASING THE t.AXIV.r/ ATTUN? TC rE KXIENDKD FROM $560,000 TO 
$705,073.66. 

WHEREAS, the Town Bo^rd of the Town of Clr-stown (here­
in called "Town"), in the County of Rockland, New York, has here­
tofore duly established Sewer District No. 27, in the Town, (here­
in called "District") pursuant to applicable provisions of the Town 
Law and the maximum amount proposed to be expended for the construc­
tion of a sewer system therein as set forth in the petition submitt­
ed to said Town Board is $560,000; 

WHEREAo, due to generally increased costs of labor and 
materials, preliminary costs and costs incidental thereto said Town 
Board has estimated the maximum cost of constructing said sewer sys­
tem to be an increase of §145,073*66; and 

WHEREAo, following due submission of an application by said 
Town Board, the State Comptroller approved the increase in the maximum 
amount to be expended for construction of said sewer system from 
#560,000 to $705,037.66 pursuant to Order dated January 22, 1%9; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 209-h of the Town Law, said 
Town Board has duly called and held a public hearing on February 19, 
1969, at the Town Hall, New ^ity, in the Town, at 9:30 o'Clock P. M. 
(E.S. T.) to consider such proposed increase in the maximum amount to 
be expended and to hear all persons interested in the subject thereof, 
concerning the same and for such other action on the part of uaid Town 
Board with relation thereto as may be required by law, 

now, therefore, be it 

ORDERED, and it is hereby dett.ririned that it is in the pub­
lic interest to increase the maximum amount proposed to be expended for 
the construction of a sev/er system in the District, in the Town, from 
$560,000 to $705,073.66 and such maximum amount is hereby so increased. 
The plan of financing is the issuance of serial bonds of the Town and 
the assessment, levy and collection of special assessments upon several 
lots and parcels of land in the District which the Town Board shall de­
termine and specify to be especially benefited thereby so much upon and 
from each as shall be in just proportion to the amount of benefit which 
the improvement shall confer upon the same to pay the principal of and 
interest on said bonds, and it is further 

ORDERED, that this Order shall take effect thirty days after 
its adoption, unless there shall be filed with the Town Clr.rks a petition 
signed and acknowledged by the owners of taxable real property situate in 
the District, as shown upon the latest completed assessment roll of the 
Town in number equal to at least five per cent of the total number of such 
owners, or by one hundred of such owners, whichever is the lesser, pro­
testing against this Order and requesting that the matter be submitted 
at a referendum in the manner provided by law. 

DATED: FEBRUARY 19, 1%9 

PRESENT: 

Hon. Paul F. Mundt, Supervisor 
James V. Damiani, Councilman 
Philip J. Frohling, Jr., Councilman 
Frank Bolander, Councilman 

Members of the Town Board of the 
Town of Clarkstcwn, New York 

Seconded by Councilman Frohling. All voted Aye. 

ir.ee
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CW) Councils.";n Frol in; .ed. \r.e following resolution: 

KESCL:"1*ICI." OF TIE TO.-.:. OF CLr.:-.- .,"XVF, ..FV YORE, ADOPTED FEFRFKRY 1 9 , 1969 , 
DIRECTING T;:L i U:dC/,VlCl; .,FD PC-vZI.'G 0? :»LTICE ,vt,u ,FbSTKACT OF THE Cr.DER 
OF S A I D TCV.':-J A I J K C V I : ; G HE I N C K I : ; ^ L a. THE F / ^ I F U F AFCI-KT TC BE E X -
iEFDED t'Cii THE IKPROVEKEFT IK oEWEr. ^FI ' .-ICT .:.. . 2 7 , In onID TOWN. 

RESOLVED BY THE 
THE COINTY OF EOCKLAFD, F T 

TOVI; ECAFD CF^T" : E TOWN CF C;AKKOTL-VM, I N 
.S FC-ui/CV/Si : L iUv 

Section 1. The lown Clerk 
t• e County of Roc' lend, II*-w York, she 
the adoption by the Town Board of sai 
to in the following notice, ceuse to 
the "JOUfiNAL NEWS,"the official news: 
posted on the sign board of the Town 
sion 6 of Section 30 of the -••'own Lav; 
places in the District in said Town o 
shall set forth the dete of adopt:or 
contain an abstract thereof concisely 

of the Town of Claiks ov,n, in 
II, within ten (10) days after 
d Town, of the Order referred 
be published at least once in 
aper of the Town, and to be 
maintained pursuant to subdivi-
and in at least five (5) public 
f Clnrkstown, a notice which 
of said foregoing Order and 
stating its purpose and effect 

Section 2. 
following form: 

Said Notice shall be in substantially the 

TOWN OF ClAREoTCWi;, HEW YORK 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that on February 19, 1%9» the Town 
Board of the Town of Glarkstown, in the County of Rockland, Itew York, 
adopted an Order entitled: 

In the Matter of the Increase in the Maximum Amount to be Expended for 
the Improvement in Sewer District No. 27, in Rockland, New York, 

I 
ORDER INCREASING THh 
1705,073.66. 

MAXIM!? NT T\ iii EXPENDED FROH §560,000 TC 

an abstract of such Order, concisely stating the pur:ose and effect 
thereof, 

being as follows: 

I 

I 

FIRST: RECITING that the Town Board of the Town of Clarks-
town, has heretofore duly est; I:shed Sewer District No. 27, in the 
Town, and the maximum amount proposed to be expended for the construc­
tion of a sewer system therein as s t forth in the petition submitted 
to said Town Board, is $560,000; that due to generally increased costs 
of labor and materials, preliminary costs and costs incidental there­
to, said Town Board has estimated the maximum cost of constructing 
said sewer system is $705,073.66, being en increase of §145,073.66; 
that following due submission of an application by said Town Board, 
the State Comptroller approved the increase in the maximum amount to 
be expended for construction of said sewer system from §560,000 to 
§705,073.66 pursuant to Order dated January 22, 1969 and said Town 
Board has duly called and held a public hearing on February 19, 1969 
to consider such proposed increase in the maximum amount to be ex­
pended and to hear all persons interested in the subject thereof, con­
cerning the same and for such other action on the part of said Town 
Board with relation thereto as may be required by law; 

SECOND: OHDERED AND DETERMINED that it is in the public 
interest to increase the maximum amount proposed to be expended for 
the construction of a sewer system in the District, in the Town, 
from §560,00 to §705,073-66; AUTHORIZING such increase in the maximum 
amount; STATING the plan of financing is the issuance of serial bonds 
of the Town and the assessment, levy and collection of special assess­
ments upon several lots and parcels of land in the District which the 
Town Board shall determine and pecify to be especially benefited 
thereby so much up on and from each as shall be in just proportion to 
the amount of benefit which the improvement shall confer upon the 
same to pay the principal of and interest on said bends; 
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THIRD: CI ,JE.-ED that t' is resolution shall take effect 
thirty (30) days after adoption unless within such period c. peti­
tion shall be fil^d with the T wn Clerk protesting arainst this 
order and v. questing that it be submitted at a referendum in the 
manner provided by lav/. 

I 
By o r u e r of t h e Town ^ o a r d of t h e 
Town of ^ l ^ r k s t o w r , i n t h e c o u n t y o f 
R o c k l a n d , New Y o r k . 

DATED: FEBR: A1<Y 1 ? , 19&9 

A1JME E . G'CCKI.CR 

Town C l e r k 

I 

ately. 
Section $. This resolution shall take effect imcedi-

The adoption of the foregoing resolution was seconded by 
Councilman Damiani and duly put to a vote on roll call, which result­
ed as follows: 

AYES: lies. rs. Kundt, Frohling, Damiani and Bolander, 

NOES: None 

The resolution was declared unaniccsi, adopted. I 
(148) Councilman Frohling offered the following; resolution: 

RESOLVED, that minutes of Town Board meetings held on 
1/3//69 and 2/5/69 are hereby approved and accepted as submitted by 
the Town Clerk, 

Seconded by Councilman Damiani. All voted Aye 

Mrs. Jean Crudo of the Bardonia F.T.A. appeared before 
the Town Board re school sidewalks snow removal. Supervisor re­
quested that? Police Chief and Highway Superintendent work on pri­
ority list. Councilman Frohling suggested that contractors for 
sidewalk snow removal be contacted by the Highway Superintendent; 
he will contact the Police Chief re priority list. 

I 
Mrs. Theodore Dusenanko commended the Highway Department 

and the Police Department for assistance given to the Volunteer 
Ambulance Service during recent snowstorm. 

(1^9) Councilman Frohling offered the following resolution: 

WHEREAS, a public hearing was scheduled to be had on 2/5/69 

I 

c75.fr


I 

I 

I 

I 

I 
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at 8:15 I'M to consider the ap: J ic:ticn of Ridge Road Builder, Inc. 
for a change of the Building Zone Ordinance for redisricting appli­
cants property frorr. an R-22 district to an R-15 district, and 

VHLIJiw.J, notices of said hearing which were sent to the 
abutting o ners as required V l«w e rcnecuslv stated that said hear­
ing would be held at 9:15 FM instead of 8:15 R* as scheduled, and 

WHEREAS, the notice of said hearing to abutting property 
was not in compliance with 1-w; 

NOW THEREFORE, be it 

RESOLVED, that a new public hearing be set for the 2nd 
day of April 1969 at 8:30 I .M. and thatappropriate notices be sent 
to abutting owners by attorney for petitioner and published as re­
quired by law. 

Seconded by Councilman Boiander. All voted Aye. 

C00149 

Mr. Michael J. Maloney appeared before the Town Board 
announcing Parade to be held on Loyalty Day, April 27, 1969 at 2:30 P.M. 
commencing in zhe A & P Parking Lot and proceeding northward to New 
Hempstead Road to the County Office Building. 

(150) Councilman Daxiani offered the following resolution: 

WHEREAS, the following have applied to the Town of Clarks-
town for Certificates of Registration in compliance with Section 3̂ —6 
of the Code of the Town of Clarkstown; 

Jelin Plumbing and Heating Corporation 
13 John Street, Spring Valley, New York 

John S. Katt 
62 Basswood Court, Bardonia, New fork 

David T. Balch 
52 Route 303, Valley Cottage, New York 

Frederick L. Myers 
239 Kings Highway, Congers, New York 

Joseph Fox d/b/a/ Fox Plumbing & Heating Co. 
Quaspeck Boulevard, Valley Cottage, New York 

Peter A. Neuffer, d/b/a Pan Excavators 
45 Lime Kiln Road, Suffern, New York 

Arthur W. Farker, d/b/a Willow Grove Septic Co. 
Blanche Road, Stony Point , New York 

NOW TIIEKECRE, be it 

RESOLVED, that the following certificates of registration 
be issued to. 

69-36 issued to Jelin Plumbing & Heating Corp. 
69-37 issued to John S. Katt 
69-38 issued to David T. Balch 
69-39 issued to Frederick L. Myers 
6Q-40 issued to Joseph Fox 
69-41 issued to Peter A. Neuffer 
69-42 issued to Arthur W. Parker 

Seconded by Councilman Bolander. All voted Aye. 
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town that plane- for the pr?por=ed improvor-eni of Route S^ in the 
vicirrintv of -he U O T S , Banber^er ~--Qp:. ing ênt< r are still in the 
preliii.iriâ -y .f;t?̂ ;es of c o: ::: doration and construction of the project 
will not "be st;::xed '"or rome tir:e. They 3tate, however, that t'-ey 
h ^e been working rather -looely with the oecro, Bamberger interests 
and h:ve .v reed to cufficienc-- r/ der.ing and channelization v. i thin 
existing; right-of-way facilities as part of the permit agreement 
for access to the shopping center to help traffic conditions at the 
time of the Center opening. Mr. Charles Cassels mentioned that he 
has copies of maps in this connection for viewing by interested 
persons. 

(151) Councilman Damiani offered the following resolution: 

WHEREAS, a reiuert for Town Loar: acceptance for future 
acceptance for future d die-1ion to the I^vn, of (16-2B12) Vailshire 
Subdivision, Manuet (3-3 acres on Korth Side £>n;ith itoad, 200' east 
of Cottare Place, was received from the Planning Soa*d of the Town 
of Clarkstown, 

ROW THEREFORE, be it 

RESOLVED, that the Town Board of the Town of ^lar^stown at 
its meeting of 2/19/69 resolved to approve acceptance, at an approp­
riate time, of the lanas referred to above. 

Seconded by Councilman Fror.ling. All voted Aye 

Councilman Damiani ascertained from Town Engineer that 
grading and seeding to be done in this area. 

(152) Councilman Bolander offered the following resolution: 

WHEREAS, the Town of Clarkstown is desirous of leasing pre­
mises from Daken Realty Corporation at 9 Johnson Lane, New City, New 
York; 

ROW THEREFORE, be it 

RESOLVE"), that the Superisor of the Town of Clarkstown is 
authorized to execute a lease for the entire second floor area, con­
sisting of 2628 feet, for a term of three years to commence on the 
1st day of March 1969. 

Seconded by Councilman Damiani. All voted Aye, 

Town Board signed the following Performance Bonds, approv­
ing same as to form and sufficiency: 

Globe Indemnity Company lerforr.ance Bond No. 576065 
SHOOKHAVEN ESTATES, NAKUET (Lyon and Guterl, Princ.) 
Amount: £4,200.00 
Period: Two years - 1/28/69 - 1/27/71 
Covers: oanitary Sewers 
Globe Indemnity Company Performance Bond No. 576064 
BROCKiiAVLK ESTATES, KAI.UET ( Lyon and Guterl, Irinc.) 
Amount: #12,750.00 
Period: Two years - l/Pt/69 - 1/27/71 
Covers: Roads 
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000151 
(1! I ;0 C^urvy ' c ri-ch: '-u- c : ' f e . - . . i *-': c : "c l l?v . in r . r e s o l u t i o n : 

ki;ZLL\! IJ\J , th'. t. tv.c. Tc,.;r. ^.er>' .̂.' •••;ir.cr' 
order ("irv 

J'J..^(.LVLJJ, th'. i t
v.e Tc.;r. ^.er>* .̂." :••: t-'r.cr' zed to o"l--n hydrant 

raer Q:rvr-p. r̂.t̂ Jf ) f-utvorizine the oaring Valley Water Company to in-
tall one (1) hydrant on V/,_ i-arro;,t -end, a 1 rox: 1:3 f-elv ?,^66' E st 

and .'.orth ire;.: the center lino of G c n o n a s Rond, Hew City. 

Seconded by Councilman Bolnnder. All voted Ave. 

Mr, Bowers, 5? ilmwood ^rive, !,:ew City, H. Y. appeared be­
fore the Town Board re tcv.n taxes; -juectioning specifically Recrea-
tion Budget. He wes inferred that many items mandated by state and 
that Board of Supervisors hr.s very little ability to stop increases. 

(15;0 Councilman uairiiani offered the following resolution: 

WHEREAS, the annual Leukemia Appeal will take place in this 
Town during the month of I'arch, and 

WHEREAS, more than 12,000 Americans die yearly from leukem­
ia, a disease which is 100% fatal, and 

WHEREAS, the welfare, security and future of our community 
and of the nation depends upon the welfare and security of its indivi­
dual citizens, and 

WHEREAS, Leukemia society, Incorporated is seeking funds 
for its constant battle against this disease through research, 
patient aid, and public education, and 

WHEREAS, because the purposes and aims of this campaign 
are deserving of the support of every citizen, 

NOW, THEREFORE, I Paul F. Mundt, Supervisor of the Town 
of Clarkstown do hereby proclaim March 1969 as LEUKEMIA MONTH in the 
Town of Clarkstown and urge all members of this community give full 
support to this campaign to end the ravages of leukemia. 

Seconded by Councilman irohling. All voted Aye. 

Town Board signed the following Performance Bonds, approv­
ing same as to form and sufficiency: 

Republic Insurance Company Bond #903359 
BRCCKSIDE ESTATES, SECTION 11, NEW CITY (ROCKLAND WOODS, INC.) 
Amount: $85,000 
Period: Two years 2/1V69 - 2/13/71 
Covers: Roads 

Republic Insurance Company Bond #903360 
BROOKSIDE ESTATES, SECTION 11, NEW CITY 
Amount: $26,000 
Period: Two years - 2/14/69 - 2/13/71 
Covers: Sewers 

(135) Councilman Frohling offered the following resolution: 

WHEREAS, Mr. Rossi has petitioned this Board for a refund 
of erroneous 1969 taxes on property in the -L'own of Clarkstown, assess­
ed to: LOUIS ROSSI, because this property was charted for 10# units 
instead of 2# units in sewer district No. 17 and was an erroneous as­
sessment, as verified by the Clarkstown Assessor, now therefore be it 
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^-wi-':u, trvt the v'.-̂ -'Tisor ::e Mil he is hr reby auth­
orized to r-ef!.?,i he petitioner the n.-.cunt of w")?.7£ -nd -h'.rge 
oew^r District ho. 17 nccount. 

Seconded "by Counci l::on J:-ir.ia'i. All voted Aye 

(156) Councilman Frohling offered the following resolution: 

WHEREAS, Mr, Ferdeaux has petitioned this Board for a re­
fund of erroneous 1%9 taxes on property in the Town of Ciarkstown, 
assessed to : EKILE FERDEAUX, because this property's elderly exemp­
tion application (form EA 565) was lost and was an erroneous assess­
ment, as verified by the Clar'-stown Assessor, now therefore be it 

RESOLVED, that the supervisor be and he is hereby author­
ized to refund the petitioner the amount of $7*05 and charge Highway 
account. 

Seconded by Councilman Damiani. All voted Aye 

(157) Councilman Frohling offered the resolution: 

WHEREAS, Mr. Gambetti has petitioned this Board for a re­
fund of erroneous 1969 taxes on property xn the Town of Clarkstown, 
assessed to: ANDREW GAMBETTI, because this property is vacant and 
should not have been charged for 16# units in sewer district No. 21, 
included was the Rockland County unit charge of $12.00 per unit, and 
was an erroneous assessment, as verified by the Clarkstown Assessor, 

NOW, THEREFORE, be it 

REoOLVED, that the Supervisor be and he is hereby author­
ized to refund the petitioner the amount of $24-9.92 and charge sewer 
District No. 21 account. 

Seconded by Councilman Damiani. All voted Aye. 

(1^8) Councilman Frohling offered the following resolution: 

V/HEREA3, St. Thomas Lutheran Church has petitioned this 
Board for a refund of erroneous 1969 taxes on property in the Town of 
Clarkstovm, assessed to 

St. Thomas Lutheran Church 
4-3 Sunset View Drive 
West Nyack, New York 
MAP 120, Bl. A, Lot 50 

because the subject premise (parsonage) has one unit only, and was 
erroneously charged for 3 units, as verified by the Clarkstown Assessor, 

NOW THEREFORE, be it 

RESOLVED, that the Supervisor be and he is hereby author­
ized to refund the petitioner the amount of $59-97 and charge to 
Sewer District No. 21 account. 

Seconded by Councilman Damiani. All voted Aye. 

(159) Councilman Frohling offered the following resolution: 

RESOLVED, that based upon the recommendation of director 
of Purchasing bids for the furnishing of office supplies be awarded 
to the lowest bidders on individual item basis to: W. J. LINN -
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(160) Councilman Bolender offered the following resolution: 

RESOLVED, based upon recor.r.endcti on of the Jirector of Pur­
chasing that bid for furnishing three (3) voting machines at cost to 
town of ^1,797.00 each, be awarded to Automatic Votinr Machine Division, 
A.Y.M. Corporation, Jamestown, New York. 

Seconded by Councilman Frohling. All voted Aye. 

(161) Councilman Frohling offered the following resolution: 

Upon request of C. Elsie Honneret, Receiver of T.-ixes, be it 

RESOLVED, that the employment of the follwoing clerks in the 
office of said Receiver of Taxes be extended for a period of thirty days 
from February 16, 1969, at their present hourly rate of compensation: 

GRACE ANNA DGNLAN, 34 Fairview Avenue, Nanuet, N. Y. 
EDNA MAISCH, 25 Fairview Avenue, Nanuet, N. Y. 
FLORENCE M. PRATT, 31 North Kidiletowc Road, Nanuet, N.Y. 
BE TY SNYDER, 126 South Harrison Avenue, Congers, N.Y. 

Seconded by Councilman Damiani. All voted Aye. 

(162) Councilman Frohling offered the following resolution: 

WHEREAS, on the 2nd day of December 1968, a hearing was held 
before the Zoning Board of Appeals for the purpose of permitting the 
reconstruction of multiple dwellings on an area known as GermondsBunga-
low Colony, and 

WHEREAS, on the 7th day of February 1969, a resolution was 
passed approving the construction of seventy-five (75) multiple dwell­
ing units on property known PS Germonds Bungalow ^olony, and 

WHEREAS, the Zoning Ordinance of the Town of ^Isrkstown and 
the Town Development Flan of the Town of Clarkstown indicated this area 
for single family dwellings; 

NOW THEREFORE, be it 

RESOLVED, that the Town Board be and hereby is strongly in 
favor of the Zoning Board of Appeals granting a rehearing on this matter 
and the Town Clerk is hereby directed to forward a copy of thir. resolu­
tion to the Chairman of the Zoning Board of Appeals. 

Seconded by Councilman inlander. All voted Aye. 

Annual Report received from Roberta Knarich, Town Historian, 
for the year 1966. 
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(163) Councilman ja.ir»iar.i offered the following resolution: 

V.':iL;;JiAo, the Hoc':land County Personnel Cffice has certi­
fied on December 26, 1968, that the position of Groundskeeper in the 
Parks & Recreation Department c:.n now te created, now therefor be it 

RESOLVED, tha+r oaid position is hereby crested and be it 
further, 

RESOLVED, that the Supervisor be authorized to execute the 
necessarj' Civil Service form for Fermenent appointment of JLSEIH 
DONALDSON of 51 Southward Avenue, Congers, New York to the position 
of Groundskeeper at a salary of 87,675*20 per annum; effective 
March 3, 1969-

Seconded by Councilman Frohling. All voted Aye, 

(164) Councilman Frohling offered the following resolution: 

WHEREAS, the Rockland County Personnel Office has certi­
fied on February 14, 1969, that the position of Typist in the oewer 
(Construction) office can row be created, now therefore be it 

RESOLVED, that said position is hereby ere tod and be it 
further 

RESOLVED, that the Supervisor be authorized to execute the 
necessary Civil Service forn for the Provisional appointment, pending 
examination of MARIOil YCUKAKS of 74 Prospect Avenue, iianuet, New York 
to the position of Typist at a salary of $6,149.00 per annum; effective 
February 25, 1969. 

Seconded by Councilman Damiani. All voted Aye. 

(165) Councilman Damiani offered the following resolution: 

WHE'EAS, Max Siemens and Emma Siemens have acquired a tax 
title to the first three hundred (300) feet of Louis Road in New City, 
New York, and 

WHEREAS, said portion is necessary in order to acquire the 
necessary right-of-way for the paving of Louis Road, and 

WHEREAS, Max Siemens and Emma Siemens have agreed to sell 
said tax title for the sum of Five Hundred and no /100 Q8500.00) Dollars, 
and beit 

FURTHER RESOLVED, that said Five Hundred and no/ (S5C0.00) 
Dollars be transferred from Current Surplus General to Louis Road 
Account, which sum shall be reimbursed to Current Surplus General upon 
the sale of obligations for the special improvement of Louis and 
Stanley Roads, 

Seconded by Councilman Frohling. All voted Aye. 

On resolution offered by Councilman Damiani, seconded by 
Councilman Bolander and unanimously adopted, Town Board meeting was 
adjourned until 1:00 P.M. on Friday, February 28, 1969. 

Signed, ^ \ 
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Anne E. O'Connor 
Town Clerk 
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